
Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Thursday 16 September 2021 at 2.00 pm

REMOTE MEETING



Date Published: 8 September 2021



Date Published: 8 September 2021

Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Thursday 16 September 2021

2.00 pm

REMOTE MEETING

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  A form is available at the back of the meeting room.

Joanne Bolton

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.
 
Questions can be asked on the day or sent to the Clerk before the
meeting. If you would like to ask a question on the day of the meeting, 
please contact the Clerk Joanne Bolton (email: 
joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk) (Tel: 01452 324197), by 10:00am 
on Tuesday 14 September 2021, so that arrangements can be made as 
the meeting is being held remotely via video conferencing.
 
The Chair will advise the timescale for any questions asked on the day of 
the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the meeting. A 
written answer will be provided if questions are received 3 clear working 
days before the date of the meeting.

Joanne Bolton

4  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2021 and note 
actions.

Joanne Bolton

5  SCHOOL FUNDING 2022/23 (Pages 13 - 42) Philip Haslett

6  HIGH NEEDS (Pages 43 - 58) Philip Haslett

7  CAPITAL (Pages 59 - 64) Gareth Vine

8  F40 AND COVID-19 UPDATE Philip Haslett



Date Published: 8 September 2021

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

1. In the event of the Forum not being able to complete the meeting, the Forum will
reconvene at 2:00 pm on Friday 17 September 2021.

2. Members of the public will be able to view the Schools Forum meeting via
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

3. The recorded meeting will be posted on the Gloucestershire County Council 
website as soon as possible following the meeting.

4. If you have any general queries about the meeting, please contact the Clerk: 
Joanne Bolton (email: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk) (Tel: 01452 324197).

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
mailto:joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


1

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM
Minutes of a remote meeting held on Thursday 17 June 2021

Present:

Alison Berry - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Helen Bond - Gloucestershire Parent Carer Forum
Lyn Dance - Special School Head Teacher
Stephen Dean - Primary School Headteachers (Academy)
Rhian Evans - Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Elaine Le Gros - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Peter Hales - Primary School Governors (Academy)
Andrew Harris - Community Representative (Chair of the Schools 

Forum)
Kirsten Harrison - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Kate Hawkins - Special School Governors
Amanda Horniman - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Lisa Jones - Primary School Headteachers (Maintained)
Gwyneth Keen - Early Years Providers
Becky Martin - Special School Governors (Maintained)
Julia Maunder - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Will Morgan - Secondary School Headteachers (Academy)
Sarah Murphy - Unions
Peter Nolan - Primary School Governors (Maintained) (Vice-Chair of 

the Schools Forum)
Alexander Norman - Secondary School Governors (Academy)
Becky Poulter-Jewson
Clare Steel

- Early Years Providers
- Special School Headteachers

Observers: Cllr Philip Robinson - Cabinet Member for Economy, Education and 
Skills
Cllr Stephen Davies - Cabinet Member for Children’s Safeguarding 
and Early Years.

Officers: Chris Spencer, Director of Children’s Services
Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development
Neil Egles, Finance Manager, Schools Strategy and Capital
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner Strategic Finance
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Officer and Clerk to the
Schools Forum

Apologies: David Alexander, Secondary Headteacher (Maintained)
Matthew Bishop, Primary School Governors (Maintained)
Penny Chislett, Post-16 Education

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

2 

Elisa Entwistle, Alternative Provision Schools
Rachel Howie, Gloucester Diocese
Adam White, Secondary School Governors (Maintained)
Rob Wilcock, Secondary School Governors (Academy)

10. ELECTION OF THE SCHOOLS FORUM CHAIR 

Andrew Harris, Community representative, was duly elected as the Schools Forum 
Chair for a two year term of office.

11. ELECTION OF THE VICE CHAIR 

Peter Nolan, primary school governor (maintained), was duly elected as the 
Schools Forum Vice-Chair for a two year term of office. 

12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

13. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions had been received.

14. MINUTES 

14.1 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 January 2021, were approved as a 
correct record.

14.2 The Forum noted the progress against the actions from the previous meeting as 
outlined in the Action Sheet.  The following points were raised:

14.2.1 The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that the local authority 
did not capture or hold information on the implementation of the 1 September 2020 
pay award, in Gloucestershire’s schools and academies.  However, feedback 
received from the Human Resources team in Education was that broadly schools 
had been operating in line with the national recommendations.

14.2.2 The Forum noted that a full review of the data around the recent rise in the number 
of requests for Education Health and Care Plans (EHCP) was ongoing.  The results 
would be brought to a future Forum meeting.

14.2.3 The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that work was ongoing 
to understand the context as to why some local authorities had no High Needs 
block deficit or a low deficit position.  The Local Authority will be meeting with 
representatives of local authorities in the South West, during the summer and early 
autumn to understand this issue in more detail.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

3 

15. 2020/21 OUTTURN AND MAINTAINED SCHOOL BALANCES 

15.1 The Head of Education Strategy and Development gave a presentation on the 
2020/21 Outturn and Maintained School Balances.  The Forum was informed that 
the 2020/21 in-year Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) outturn position was an 
overspend of £3.480M resulting in a cumulative overspend of £11.892M, 
representing 2.48% of the 2020/21 gross DSG budget. There was a £0.750M 
Schools Block net underspend consisting of three elements: an underspend of 
£0.283M on the growth fund used to fund new schools and increases in basic need 
places; an in-year under spend of £0.292M on the de-delegated budgets that 
related to maintained schools only; and funds remaining after the closure of Saint 
Dominic’s Catholic School, Stroud. 
 

15.2 He reported that there was also a surplus of £0.497M at the end of last year relating 
to dedelegated balances that was part of the net £8.412M deficit balance brought 
forward bringing the dedelegated surplus element of the DSG up to £0.789M. 
Although there was an overall net £11.892M DSG deficit being carried forward to 
2021/22, that contained surplus commitments relating to the £0.789M maintained 
schools dedelegated budgets and an Early Years DSG surplus of £0.989M.

15.3 The Forum was informed that Early Years finished with a £0.989M under-spend in 
2020/21. The under-spend related to lower than expected payments for nursery 
education and the delayed use of project funding due to COVID-19. The carry 
forward would be used to cover the time lag in any adjustments in funding due to 
revised activity levels following the January and May census and continue with the 
planned projects.

15.4 The Forum noted that the outturn position for the High Needs Block at the end of 
2020/21 was a deficit of £5.119M.  

15.5 The Forum agreed that the DSG deficit balance at the end of 2020/21 be 
earmarked, as shown in the report and carried forward to 2021/22.

15.6 A member raised a concern that the EHCP process was stalling in 
Gloucestershire’s schools due to a lack of educational psychologist provision - 
without the EHCPs in place schools were unable to receive the associated funding 
to support the child. The Director of Children’s Services explained that there was a 
national shortage of educational psychologists and therefore their recruitment and 
retention was challenging.  The local authority was undertaking the initiative ‘grow 
our own’ in an aim to stabilise the workforce, thereby replicating the approach 
developed for retaining social workers.  The approach had been very successful in 
reducing the reliance on agency social workers. Engaging private educational 
psychologists as part of the framework was also being considered. The workflows 
from schools had  increased disproportionately over the last three years with 
requests for EHCPs growing by an extra 300-350 requests each year which was  
unsustainable.  Therefore the issue was not just related to the availability of 
educational psychologists which remained largely the same but also to the growing 
demand for EHCPs put forward by schools. The Forum noted this as an area of 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

4 

concern, and it was acknowledged that whilst the local authority did have a plan in 
place, it could be a while before the plan made a positive impact in addressing the 
issue.

15.7 The Forum received an update on the maintained school balances at the end of 
2020/21. At the end of the financial year 31 March 2021, 173 schools were in 
surplus, 23 schools (10 less than last year) were in deficit. The Forum received a 
summary of the work being undertaken by the Council’s Officer Deficit Group to 
review deficits and excess surpluses, and its work with schools. 

15.8 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that the f40 had 
previously sent a clear message to government that a further round of funding was 
needed to address schools’ exceptional costs due to the impact of COVID-19.  
However, the general picture in Gloucestershire now, and in other counties 
(following reports from f40 members of other local authorities), was that overall, the 
anticipated level of additional exceptional costs to schools had not been seen, or 
that the costs had been offset by some savings.  A further round of funding from the 
government was therefore not expected.

15.9 The Finance Business Partner explained that the outturn position for non-DSG 
funded services was an overspend position of £10.775M (8.3% of budget). That 
included the additional cost of the impact of COVID-19 on budgets which totalled 
£7.297M giving an underlying overspend of £3.478M. Significant overspends 
included external placements (£10.078M) and home to school transport (£1.296M), 
both of which were identified as ongoing pressures at the end of 2019/20. The 
Forum was informed that investment approved as part of the 2021/22 budget would 
help to address a significant part of the cost pressures identified although 
increasing demand for social care services would continue to put pressure on the 
placements budget.

15.10 In response to a question, the Finance Business Partner explained that despite 
multiple lockdowns and partial school closures, there was still a significant 
overspend in the home to school transport budget. The costs remained as the local 
authority was required to continue to support the transport providers to ensure that 
the contracts remained in place for when the schools fully reopened.  Many pupils 
with SEND were still attending school throughout the lockdown periods and 
therefore the associated costs remained.  Home to school transport costs were 
significantly higher when schools reopened due to the need to comply with COVID-
19 social distancing restrictions (e.g. in some instances taxis had to be used to 
transport pupils instead of mini buses).

16. HIGH NEEDS 

16.1 The Head of Education Strategy and Development set out the proposed budget for 
2021/22 and the forecast budget position for the following 2 years.  In-year a deficit 
budget of £5.449M was set for High Needs to reflect a realistic position considering 
growth trends and activity demands on special school and independent provision 
and top up budgets. At year end the outturn was £330k below that budget resulting 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

5 

in a final overspend of £5,119,200.  He explained that the local authority’s three-
year plan showed the in-year overspend reducing to £1,794,574 in 2022/23 and a 
surplus of £419,563 in 2023/24.  Officers were confident that a slowing down in the 
use of higher cost specialist placements, the impact of early intervention work and 
the continued rise in funding would generate the improved position. 

16.2 The Head of Education Strategy and Development advised the Forum that 
increasing top-up funding at this stage would put the High Needs budget recovery 
at risk.   A decision to increase all top-up funding by 2% would result in a 
cumulative total cost over the three years of around £4M. 

16.3 Special school representatives on the Forum strongly emphasised the point that the 
financial situation in special schools had become untenable. They reported that top-
up values had increased slightly once since they were set in 2013, however the 
complexity of pupils in the schools had risen hugely in that time resulting in the 
need for increased staff:pupil ratios due to complex medical issues and extreme 
challenging behaviour, all resulting in increased costs and pressure on staff. 
Representatives of mainstream schools also echoed those concerns – stressing 
just how much financial pressure schools that had high levels of children with SEND 
were under.   Whilst there was recognition and understanding of the local 
authority’s plan to drive down the deficit and achieve a balanced High Needs 
budget, there was strong support for this not to be at the expense of freezing top-up 
funding. Members acknowledged that would add even more pressure on the 
already stretched budgets of special schools and inclusive mainstream schools. 
Without sufficient funding schools would not be able to meet the increasingly 
complex needs of children coming into the system.  

16.4 A Forum member referred to the local authority’s three-year forecast for the High 
Needs budget, and suggested that in order to understand the dire financial 
pressures schools were under, consideration should also be given to the three-year 
plans for individual schools. In response, the Head of Education and Strategy 
explained that this was a collective deficit within the Dedicated Schools Grant. 
Whilst the local authority had oversight of the High Needs Block, all funding was 
allocated to education institutions. He added that whilst ultimately the decision to 
freeze top-ups values rested with the local authority, the view of the Forum was 
crucial in providing an understanding how it would affect schools. However, this had 
to be balanced against the overall funding picture of a significant High Needs Block 
deficit.

16.5 A special school representative suggested that a similar percentage rise to special 
school top-up values as mainstream school age weighted pupil unit values was 
needed. Concern was expressed that if the top-ups did not increase alongside 
rising costs, schools would not be able to afford to meet the needs of complex 
pupils - a statutory requirement set out in a child’s EHCP. There was concern that 
this may result in an increase in the use of costly out of county specialist school 
placements, thus creating a false economy. It was also suggested that there were 
not enough special school places in the county which was putting additional 
pressure on mainstream schools.  

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

6 

16.6 In response to the question, the Head of Education Strategy and Development 
confirmed that he would provide the Gloucestershire Association of Special School 
Headteachers, with the figures on the increases in places in the special school 
sector over the next 3 years, and where those additional places would be allocated. 
ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development.

16.7 In response to a question, the Head of Education Strategy and Development 
reported that he was engaging with representatives of other local authorities on the 
issue of High Needs block deficits. There was recognition that, with a few 
exceptions, generally all local authorities were in the same position - there was no 
clear panacea for the problem. A number of local authorities with the largest deficits 
were liaising with the DfE and the ESFA about how deficit recovery could be 
achieved. Information on the results of that exercise were awaited. It was clear 
however that the DfE was not intending to write off the deficit.

16.8 A member posed the question as to whether the government was able to afford any 
additional funding for High Needs, particularly given the substantial costs related to 
the COVID-19 pandemic - would it therefore be more prudent to freeze top-up rates 
to keep the High Needs deficit recovery on track. There was recognition that the 
government’s allocation of funding to High Needs was based on the determination 
of prioritisation against the other areas of its funding responsibilities.  It was a 
question of whether the High Needs finding was being prioritised sufficiently.

16.9 The Director of Children’s Services explained that he understood and was 
sympathetic to the concerns being raised.  He stressed however that it was 
important to understand the full context including the consequences of the local 
authority not recovering the High Needs deficit at the end of the three-year plan.  
Whilst the DfE had given local authorities 3 years in which to address their High 
Needs deficit, at the end of that 3 year period any debt would become a real issue.  
Councils were required by law to produce a balanced budget, if they could not find 
a way to balance expenditure then a Section 114 order would be issued.  That 
could lead to an external manager of the council’s finances being appointed to work 
on producing a viable budget.   Gloucestershire County Council was a well run local 
authority, and not in that position, but ultimately it was important to ensure that 
Gloucestershire was not facing the prospect of dealing with an £18M deficit at the 
end of that period.  He assured members that full consideration would be given to 
all of the points raised.

16.10 Following the wide ranging debate, members considered the local authority’s 
recommendation that top-up funding should remain frozen at the current levels.  
The Forum did not support the recommendation and instead recommended that 
top-up values increase by 2% for both mainstream and special schools, even if that 
meant the High Needs budget deficit for 2021/22 having to be increased. (One 
member voted in favour of the local authority’s recommendation that top-up funding 
should remain frozen at the current levels).    

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

7 

16.11 The Head of Education Strategy and Development explained that decisions on the 
delegation of the High Needs block funding were the responsibility of the local 
authority, and therefore the Forum’s recommendation to increase top-up funding by 
2% for both mainstream and special schools, would now need to be considered by 
the local authority.
ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development.

16.12 Members of the Forum were deeply concerned that a 2% increase to top-up funding 
would have only a limited impact on improving the financial situation of schools in 
order for them to meet the needs of children with additional needs.  The Forum was 
strongly of the view that there needed to be a significant increase in High Needs 
block funding from central government to deal with the substantial growth in the 
complexity of need coming into the system.  The work of the f40 group was 
recognised as crucial in campaigning and lobbying the government to ensure that 
local authorities were sufficiently funded to meet the needs of all children.

16.13 Officers confirmed that despite the significant disruption created by the COVID-19 
pandemic, delivery of the Joint Additional and High Needs programme was 
progressing well.  The Forum received an update on the key activities taking place 
including the development of the new 11-16 SEMH school; and the Spend 
Redesign Project – the funding proposals would be considered by the Forum at the 
September 2021 meeting for discussion and approval for the pilot.  The final 
funding model would be considered by the Forum at the November 2021 meeting, 
for approval, ahead of a full roll out.  The changes to the funding model itself were 
not intended to provide direct and immediate savings or reduce funding for schools.  
The changes being proposed were to improve the clarity, consistency and 
effectiveness of the funding system.

16.14 It was reported that alongside the changes being made to the funding model, 
improvements were being made to the processes involved with the EHCP pathway.   
The key aim was to have an end to end casework model that was centred on the 
child, not the process and that operated efficiently and effectively for all key 
stakeholders.

16.15 The Forum was informed of the developments in the Alternative Provision (AP) 
Service and the proposed changes to the funding model that would support earlier 
intervention services.   The local authority’s intention was to provide flexibility for AP 
to work closely with the school system to develop and deliver a range of early 
intervention services that supported continued access to mainstream provision and 
removed the perverse incentive for exclusion.  The local authority was proposing 
that any unused top-up funding be made available to the schools to support the 
development of their revised service offer.

16.16 The Forum agreed that to enable the schools to deliver a new service offer, the 
2021/22 High Needs budget would assume that full funding would be made 
available to alternative provision schools this year.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

8 

16.17 The Forum was updated on the number of permanent exclusions in 2020/21 and 
how the figures compared to previous years’ as outlined in the report. The Head of 
Education Strategy and Development explained that it had been difficult to draw 
comparisons from the data generated over the last 18 months due to the multiple 
lockdowns and partial school closures. Data at the end of May 2021 showed 
reductions in permanent exclusion, but for the periods that schools were fully open 
levels of permanent exclusion were in line with 2018/19.   

16.18 The Forum was informed that the DfE captured SEN data through the annual SEN2 
survey, for which data has just been released.  A comparison of the local picture, to 
both Gloucestershire’s statistical neighbours and the national picture was presented 
to the Forum.  In terms of overall numbers of EHCPs Gloucestershire was broadly 
in line with national and statistical neighbours, but the rate of new EHCP requests 
and approvals had been high during the last 12 months.  The rising number of 
EHCPs in the system remained a critical driver for High Needs expenditure.  The 
Head of Education Strategy and Development commented that the local authority 
would be working closely with both local and statistical neighbours to explore the 
data in more detail and he would report back on the findings to the Forum at the 
September 2021 meeting.
ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development.

16.19 The Forum was informed that the outcome and recommendations of the 
government’s SEND review was due to be published imminently.  A further High 
Needs Funding consultation was expected to take place, to focus on long term 
funding changes. The Head of Education Strategy and Development confirmed that 
following the publication of the SEND review and ahead of the publication of the 
High Needs consultation a Schools Forum working group session would take place 
to assess the implications of the SEND review and any impacts on the local funding 
models; and consider the existing High Needs funding formula and identify the right 
proxy measures that could underpin the funding formula.  
ACTION: Head of Education Strategy and Development/Clerk to the Schools 
Forum.

17. DSG EARLY YEARS BLOCK 2021/22 

17.1 The Forum received an update on the use of the Early Years block in 2021/22 and 
considered a proposal
to fund cross border requests for free entitlement from parents in Gloucestershire 
using Welsh settings.

17.2 The Forum agreed the use of the Early Years block as set out in the report.  

17.3 The Forum was informed that currently parents living in Gloucestershire could not 
claim the extended child care offer of 30 hours in a Welsh setting.  This primarily 
affected 3-4 years olds, with a loss of around 20 hours funding for those opting to 
use welsh settings.  There was no clear mechanism in place to address the issue, 
resulting in a lack of equity.

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

9 

17.4 The Forum noted that there were 76 early years childcare settings in England within 
10 miles of the Gloucestershire border and 72 Welsh settings within 10 miles of the 
Gloucestershire border. On average, the local authority received 2 queries per 
month from parents wanting to use a Welsh setting to access the full entitlement.  
Potential costs based on an estimated 2 out of county childcare requests per month 
claiming for a 2-year period would be £148k.

17.5 The Forum agreed to the use of the Early Years block to fund cross boarder 
requests based on the set criteria as set out in the report.

18. ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM 
CONSTITUTION 

18.1 The Forum received a report which detailed the proposed amendments to the 
Constitution and the options for holding future Forum meetings.

18.2 The Forum agreed the proposed amendments to the Schools Forum Constitution to 
reflect that The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2021 
amended The Schools Forums (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 
2020 to make permanent provisions to enable schools forum meetings to be held 
remotely.

18.3 The Forum considered the options for holding future Forum meetings and it was 
agreed that the September 2021 Forum meeting would be held remotely, and in 
recognition of the value of holding some of the Forum meetings as physical in 
person meetings, the November 2021 meeting would likely be held in Shire Hall 
(dependant on national announcements regarding the easing of COVID-19 
restrictions).  The options for holding Forum meetings next year, including hybrid 
meetings, would be considered at a later date.

19. F40 AND COVID-19 UPDATE 

19.1 The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that a £1.4 billion 
package of support from government had been announced, consisting of:  

 £1 billion investment to transform the availability and approach to tuition in 
every school and college over the next three years, making sure when 
teachers identified a disadvantaged child in need of support as a result of the 
pandemic, extra support was available.  He commented that the local 
authority would be sending out information to schools on how they could 
access and make use of that funding.

 £153M would provide the opportunity for evidence-based professional 
development for early years practitioners, including through new 
programmes focusing on key areas such as speech and language 
development for the youngest children. 

 £253M would expand existing teacher training and development to give 
500,000 school teachers the opportunity to access world-leading training 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

10 

appropriate for whatever point they were at in their career, from new 
teachers to headteachers. 

19.2 The Head of Education Strategy and Development reported that he had attended 
the f40 Executive Group meeting on 14 June 2021.  The priorities of the group 
remained focussed on the delivery of a fair National Funding Formula (NFF), and 
the group had been meeting with the DfE Funding Team to work on that.   It was 
expected that consultation with local authorities on the roll out of the hard NFF 
would take place in 2021.  He explained that it was important to note that the roll 
out of the hard NFF was not expected to have a huge impact on the way the 
funding system worked in Gloucestershire, as the local formula already aligned 
closely with the proposed hard NFF.

20. SCHOOLS FORUM MEETING DATES IN 2022 

The Forum noted the future meeting dates:     

2021
Thursday 16 September at 2:00pm
Thursday 11 November at 2:00pm

2022
Thursday 13 January at 2:00pm 
Thursday 16 June at 2:00pm
Thursday 15 September at 2:00pm
Thursday 10 November at 2:00pm

Chair

Meeting concluded at 4.10 pm

Page 10



 

Schools Forum Meeting on 17 June 2021 
 

Action Sheet 
 
TOPIC 
 
 

 
ACTION 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

 
OUTCOME 
 

High Needs 

 
(a) The Head of Education Strategy and Development to 

provide the Gloucestershire Association of Special 
School Headteachers, with the figures on the increases 
in places in the special school sector over the next 3 
years, and where those additional places would be 
allocated.  

 
(b) The Forum’s recommendation to increase top-up 

funding by 2% for both mainstream and special 
schools, to be considered by the local authority. 

 
 

(c) A report on the findings of the review of the SEN data 
captured through the DfE’s SEN2 survey, to be brought 
to the next Forum meeting.   

 
(d) Following the publication of the SEND review and 

ahead of the publication of the High Needs consultation 
a Schools Forum working group session to take place 
to assess the implications of the SEND review and any 
impacts on the local funding models; and consider the 
existing High Needs funding formula and identify the 
right proxy measures that could underpin the funding 
formula.   

 
 
 
 
 

Head of Education Strategy 
and Development 
 
 
 
 
Head of Education Strategy 
and Development 
 
 
 
Head of Education Strategy 
and Development 
 
 
Head of Education Strategy 
and Development/Clerk to the 
Schools Forum 
 

Figures are currently being 
finalised alongside regional data 
for the South West and will be 
shared with GASSH at their next 
meeting. 
 
The council have agreed the 2% 
increase, with adjustments being 
made to external AP funding to 
keep this cost neutral for 2021/22. 
 
See attached date report included 
with High Needs report. 
 
 
SEN review is yet to be published, 
despite repeated messages that it 
was imminent.  

P
age 11



 

P
age 12



 

School Funding 2022/23  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

17th September 2021 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

30th August 2019 Prime Minister announcement about £14billion 
extra funding Link  

Announcement on 19th July of LA level 2022-23 indicative DSG Link  

The National Funding Formula (NFF) for Schools and High Needs 
2022/23 Link 

The DfE’s indicative school level 2022/23 figures Link 

Consultation on reforms to the NFF Link  

Author Phil Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Neil Egles, Finance Manager – Schools Strategy and Capital 

Purpose of Report To set out the implications of government indicative announcements 

on school funding for 2022/23 and to seek agreement from the 

Forum on the funding formula method to use for Gloucestershire 

schools and academies 

Key 
Recommendations 

Recommendation 1 That a top-slice for growth of £1.3m is agreed 

for 2022/23 subject to being updated for any change in the basic 

need AWPU rates for 2022/23 when these are finalised in January 

2022. 

Recommendation 2: The Schools Forum agree the basis on which 

the formula will be allocated for 2022/23 in line with their previous 

stated intention to match the National Funding Formula (NFF) 

method as closely as possible and to utilise any surplus remaining in 

the schools block to support the 1 in 40 model. 

Recommendation 3 Forum members are asked to consider and 

approve de-delegation at the per pupil rates shown. 

Recommendation 4 Forum members agree or put forward 

suggested amendments to the consultation questions on reforms to 

the NFF. 

Resource 
Implications 

Funding announcements relate to indicative increases in DSG 
funding. Exact amounts for Gloucestershire are not due to be 
announced until December 2021. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

https://schoolfinancialsuccess.us13.list-manage.com/track/click?u=6262ca36ac03845f346f25913&id=54ca847a3b&e=dc8e04b92f
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-funding-formula-tables-for-schools-and-high-needs-2022-to-2023
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1003492/2022-23_NFF_Policy_Document.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-funding-formula-tables-for-schools-and-high-needs-2022-to-2023
https://consult.education.gov.uk/funding-policy-unit/completing-our-reforms-to-the-nff/


1 Introduction 
 
On the 19th September 2019 the Prime Minister announced £14billion extra funding 
for Education over 3 years. On the 19th July 21 an announcement was made about 
the third year of that funding including information on: indicative 2022/23 DSG 
funding and the 2022/23 Schools and High Needs National Funding Formula (NFF). 
 
The DSG figures released are indicative only at this stage. Final DSG figures will be 
released in December 2021 along with the October 2021 pupil census and other 
census data that will be used to determine schools’ actual budget allocations for 
2022/23. 
 
2 Indicative 2022/23 DSG allocations 
 
The indicative 2022/23 DSG allocations (before any changes for the updated census 
data that will be announced in December 2021) are shown below. The percentage 
increases are broadly in-line with those from 2020/21 to 2021/22 (excluding the 
increase in 2021/22 that related to teachers pay and pensions funding moving into 
the DSG). 
 

 
 

The 2022/23 growth funding element of the schools block has not yet been 
announced so the schools block total above currently includes growth funding 
assumed at the £2.836m 2021/22 level. 
2022/23 indicative Early Years block funding has not yet been announced, so that 
block is included above at its current 2021/22 level.  
 
The final DSG position will be presented at the 12th January 2022 Schools Forum 
meeting after being updated for the final DSG and revised pupil data due to be 
announced in December 2021. 
 
3  Growth Fund 
In line with DfE requirements, the growth fund is topsliced from the schools block 
DSG to provide funding for new classes required as a result of a shortage of basic 
need places and for start up costs for any new schools opening in the year. On 
current information and using the 2022/23 NFF Basic Need AWPU rates, the growth 
fund needed for 2022/23 is £1.3m. This is £0.2m less than was needed in 2021/22. 
 
Recommendation 1: That a top-slice for growth of £1.3m is agreed for 2022/23 
subject to being updated for any change in the basic need AWPU rates for 
2022/23 when these are finalised in January 2022. 
 

Page 14



4 The NFF and Gloucestershire Schools Funding Formula 

The local authority and School Forum’s role in the distribution of school funding 
remains unchanged for 2022/23.  
 
There is currently no fixed target date by which all schools will receive their 
allocations via a ‘hard’ NFF, however the Department for Education (DfE) are 
consulting on the approach to completing their reforms of the National Funding 
Formula (NFF) and how they most effectively transition away from local formulae to 
all schools’ funding allocations eventually being determined directly by the NFF. 
 
Details of this consultation are covered in Annex C in this paper which includes 
summary information on the consultation that has been produced by the society of 
county treasurers (SCT). As a starting point for discussion we have provided draft 
answers to the consultation questions and ask that the Forum consider these and 
provide feedback at the meeting.  
 
There will be a follow-up DfE consultation once responses to these questions have 
been considered.  

 
The DfE have published indicative school-level 2022/23 figures which illustrate the 
impact of the notional NFF for each school. However these figures are based on data 
from the October 2020 census while actual budgets schools will receive will be based 
on the October 2021 school census and other census data for additional needs, so 
the final figures will be subject to adjustment after the 2021 census is completed. 
 
The deadline for issuing school budgets for 2022/23 is the 28th of February 2022. 
 
The key National Funding Formula (NFF) changes for 2022/23 are: 
 
3% increases to the factors for basic entitlement; deprivation allocations based on 
free school meals at any time in the last 6 years (FSM6) and on income deprivation 
affecting children index (IDACI); lower prior attainment (LPA), English as an 
additional language (EAL) and the lump sum. 
 
2% increase to the minimum per pupil levels and free school meals (FSM). 
 
Sparsity 

£10,000 increase primary and £5,000 increase secondary to the maximum amount a 

school can receive for the sparsity factor. Primaries are now eligible for up to a 

maximum of £55,000 and Secondaries up to £80,000. 

Schools sparsity distances are now based on road distances, instead of straight-line 

‘as the crow flies’ distances. 

A sparsity distance taper has been introduced in addition to the existing year group 

size taper. Schools marginally below the main distance thresholds (2 miles Primary, 

3 miles secondary) will now also attract some sparsity funding, but at a lower 

amount. This new sparsity distance taper is set at 20% below these main thresholds 

(1.6 miles primary and 2.4 miles secondary). This means that, for example, primary 

Page 15

https://consult.education.gov.uk/funding-policy-unit/completing-our-reforms-to-the-nff/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-funding-formula-tables-for-schools-and-high-needs-2022-to-2023


schools whose sparsity distance is between 1.6 miles and 2 miles (and have a 

sufficiently small average year group size below 21.4), will now also be allocated 

some sparsity funding. This will however reduces via the taper the closer the 

distance is to 1.6 miles. The same applies to secondary schools but between 2.4 

miles and 3 miles (and have a sufficiently small average year group size below 120). 

The DfE believe this has improved the fairness of the factor by removing the 

cliff-edge to eligibility and ensuring that marginal differences in sparsity distances do 

not result in significant differences to a school’s funding. 

Based on the illustrative NFF for Gloucestershire for 2022/23 the number of 

secondary schools receiving sparsity funding has increased by 1, but in the primary 

sector the number of eligible schools has increased by 164% from 28 in 2021/22 to 

78 in 2022/23. This along with the increase in the funding rate for both sectors 

means that total funding allocated by sparsity will increase from £1.2m in 2021/22 to 

£3.2m in 2022/23. 

 

 

FSM6 

Data on pupils who have been eligible for FSM6 is now taken from the October 2021 

school census instead of the January 2021 census, to make the factor more up to 

date and bring it in line with arrangements for other NFF factors as well as the pupil 

premium. 

Mobility 

Pupils who joined a school between January and May will attract funding for mobility 

based on their entry date, rather than by virtue of the May school census being their 

first census at the current school, as the May  census did not take place due to 

coronavirus (COVID-19). 

Rates 

The DfE are centralising the business rates payment system for schools, so that the 

ESFA will pay billing authorities directly on behalf of state funded schools from 

2022/23. This will simplify the process and decrease administrative burdens for 

schools. Further details on this are expected from the DfE shortly. 

Page 16



 

Minimum Per Pupil Funding (MPPF) Levels 
The Minimum per pupil funding (MPPF) increases by 2% to £5,525 per secondary 
pupil and £4,265 per primary pupil. 
 
These amounts exclude the premises elements of the formula but include the lump 
sum and any sparsity allocation, so should not be confused with the Basic 
entitlement age weighted pupil unit rates. They are the minimum amount a school will 
receive per pupil, if the total produced by their funding formula (excluding premises 
factors) is lower. 
 
A breakdown by sector and school number on roll (NOR) of the schools requiring 
MPPF uplifts in 2022/23 is shown in Annex A. There has been an overall reduction of 
10 schools requiring MPPF since last year, 7 in Primary and 3 in secondary. 
 
Funding Floor/Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG). 
The funding floor in the NFF remains at 2% to ensure every school is allocated at 
least 2% more funding per pupil. Local authorities are required to use a minimum 
funding guarantee (MFG) between +0.5% and +2%. instead of a funding floor when 
setting the schools formula, however, as the DfE expect local authorities to use the 
MFG to match the mainstream schools funding floor protection in the NFF, it is our 
intention to set the 2022/23 MFG at the same 2% level. 
 
A breakdown by sector and school number on roll (NOR) of the schools receiving this 
through the NFF in 2022/23 is shown in Annex A. There has been an overall 
reduction of 38 schools on the funding floor since last year, 37 in Primary and 1 in 
secondary. 
 

Page 17



NFF 2022/23 formula factor rates published by the DfE 
The increases in the government’s NFF rates for 2022/23 are shown below: 

 

 
An Area Cost Adjustment (ACA) to reflect geographical variation in both the general labour 

market (GLM) and in teacher pay scales will also be applied to the above 2022/23 amounts. 

For Gloucestershire the ACA is 1.00629. 

 
Split site factor. 
The DfE currently identify this as an element of premises funding and therefore 
allocates funding for it to LAs based on the previous year’s allocations. It is then up 
to LAs and schools forums to identify their own local formula for allocating to schools. 
As the Gloucestershire split site formula is based on a lump sum and per pupil 
amount, we have uplifted this for 2022/23 by 3.01% for the per pupil amount and 
2.97% for the lump sum amount in line with the NFF increase in those factors. This 
will provide an indicative 2022/23 split site factor before ACA of £46,567 plus £62.14 
per pupil. 
 

Page 18



0.5% transfers from the schools block 
Local authorities continue to be able to transfer up to 0.5% of their total schools block 
allocations to other blocks of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), with schools forum 
approval.  
 
Use of any balance remaining in the schools block 
The exact amount of any balance remaining will not be known until final updated 
census data and the final DSG for 2022/23 is issued in December 2021. However on 
current estimates using the 2022/23 NFF rates, the revised sparsity data and the 
2021/22 census data there would be approximately £0.520m (0.1%) of the schools 
block remaining after funding for growth and delegated budgets at the 100% NFF 
level.  
 
Following the Schools Forum decision in each of the last two years to utilise any 
surplus in the schools block to support the 1 in 40 model, it is proposed that any 
surplus in the schools block is utilised in the same way in 2022/23. 
 
Recommendation 2 

The Schools Forum agree the basis on which the formula will be allocated for 

2022/23 in line with their previous stated intention to match the NFF method as 

closely as possible and to utilise any surplus remaining in the schools block to 

support the 1 in 40 model. 

 

 

5 De-delegations for local authority maintained schools 
Decision-making on de-delegations rests with maintained school representatives of 
the forum only and decisions need to be made separately for each phase. 
 
Deductions are made from the formula allocations for maintained schools only.  The 
aggregate total for each de-delegated budget changes each year to reflect both 
changes in maintained pupil numbers and reductions due to further academy 
conversions. 
 
5.1 In-year increases in pupil numbers at primary schools 
This supports maintained primaries with significant pupil increases above a threshold 
in their NOR between October census dates. The formula has been reviewed by the 
Forum a number of times and has been agreed as: 
Where the increase in October School Census numbers exceeds the higher of 5% or 
10 pupils (the 5% threshold is subject to a ceiling of 15 pupils) then 7/12 of the Basic 
Entitlement (Age Weighted Pupil Unit) pupil allocation will be triggered for each pupil 
above this threshold. 
 

5.2 Targeted Intervention-Primary 
The de-delegated funding has been used to support the LA in carrying out its duties 
to local authority maintained primary, junior and infant and special schools under the 
Schools causing concern guidance for local authorities and Regional Schools 
Commissioners on how to work with schools to support improvements to educational 
performance, and on using their intervention powers, September 2020 (Link) and in 

accordance with the LA’s ongoing responsibility for school improvement as detailed 

Page 19

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/922910/schools_causing_concern1.pdf


in the LA’s school improvement strategy. The aim is to develop and support a self-
improving school system. 
 
Advisers have worked closely with the schools that are judged to require 
improvement and those that were good at their previous Ofsted inspection but are 
currently considered vulnerable. There are 11 schools where Ofsted will return for a 
full Section 5 inspection following one-day Section 8 inspections. The LA uses a 
rigorous risk assessment process in order to identify all schools that are at risk of 
decline, including those currently judged ‘outstanding’ and puts in place a model for 
bringing about rapid improvement. Outstanding schools that will be subject to 
inspection from September and that have previously been exempt could be at 
particularly at risk. Close monitoring ensures that the appropriate level of challenge 
and support is provided for these schools to ensure that provision improves as 
quickly as possible. Additional support is commissioned or brokered where 
necessary, including through the locality partnership, with the two Teaching Hubs 
and with good and outstanding schools, to ensure that the capacity for further 
sustained improvement in all schools remains strong. 
 
There is a differentiated, bespoke approach to support and targeted intervention for 
schools. In some cases, the funding has been used to support new, acting or interim 
leadership arrangements. In others, it has been used to provide urgent support with 
training and coaching of staff, or to secure urgent improvements in, for example, 
safeguarding or governance. The project group approach and the risk assessment is 
undertaken collaboratively with head teachers and governors.  
 
Research shows that schools at risk of decline or failure are likely to benefit from 
specialist HR advice. A HR business partner for schools is funded and dedicated to 
the Education Outcomes and Intervention Team. Where the school would benefit 
from other specialist support (e.g. Safeguarding, Finance, Health and Safety) this 
has been coordinated and funded through the project group. In order to ensure that 
budgets are used effectively, schools are monitored and potential deficit is 
challenged robustly by the deficit scrutiny group. The targeted intervention deficit 
budget has been used to support schools in particular difficulty to address financial 
management concerns. 
 
Ofsted inspectors continue to speak highly of the quality of work undertaken by the 
local authority in supporting and challenging schools to improve. There are a number 
of primary schools that have improved significantly as a result of LA intervention and 
support. 
 
5.3 Union Facilities-Primary 
A report summarising the use of facilities time funding is attached at Annex B.  
 
5.4 LA statutory duties-Primary and Secondary 
The regulations continue to provide for LAs to retain some of their maintained 
schools’ DSG in an arrangement akin to de-delegation to cover statutory duties 
(primarily budgeting, accounting and internal audit, administration of pensions and a 
range of other HR duties and landlord responsibilities on buildings) that relate to 
maintained schools only. 
 

Page 20



5.5 The de-delegation rates to apply in 2022/23 
In summary the relevant phase maintained school representatives on the Forum are 
asked to consider agreeing deductions, from the budgets of maintained schools only, 
for the functions listed in the table below. 
 
Items 1 to 3 cover the primary maintained sector only and item 4 covers both the 
primary and secondary maintained sectors. Those eligible to vote are shown against 
each de-delegation proposal. 

 

 De-delegation 
proposal 

Eligible to vote  
 

Estimated Budgets based on 
maintained schools October 2020 

census numbers & known academy 
conversions. (Will be updated for 

October 2021 census) 
Primary 34,417 

Secondary 4,101 

   Per pupil 
Rate £ 

Total 
£000 

1 In-year 
increases in 
pupil numbers 
– primary 
 

Lisa Jones 

Elaine Le Gros 

Amanda 

Horniman  

Rhian Evans 

Peter Nolan 

Matthew Bishop 

6.32 218 

2 Targeted 
intervention - 
primary 

Lisa Jones 

Elaine Le Gros 

Amanda 

Horniman  

Rhian Evans 

Peter Nolan 

Matthew Bishop 

9.27 

 

319 

3 Union facilities 
- primary 

Lisa Jones 

Elaine Le Gros 

Amanda 

Horniman  

Rhian Evans 

Peter Nolan 

Matthew Bishop 

3.05 105 

Page 21



4 Local authority 
statutory duties 
-primary and 
secondary 
 
 

Lisa Jones 

Elaine Le Gros 

Amanda 

Horniman  

Rhian Evans 

Peter Nolan 

Matthew Bishop  

David 

Alexander  

5.00 193 

 

Recommendation 3 

Forum members are asked to consider and approve de-delegation at the per 
pupil rates shown for: 

 in-year increases in pupil numbers (primary)  

 targeted intervention (primary) 

 union facilities (primary) 

 local authority statutory duties (primary and secondary) 
 

6. High Needs Block 
The indicative figures for the high needs block for 2022/23 show an increase of 
£6.409m (8.6%). This extra resource is to help local authorities manage their cost 
pressures in this area, while the government remains focused on completing the 
cross-departmental review of the SEND system to ensure that it supports children 
and young people with SEND as efficiently and effectively as possible. 
 

There is a separate high needs report on the agenda which details the impact of this 
funding and the latest actions and trends. 
 

7. Central Schools Services Block (CSSB) 
The CSSB includes funding for on-going responsibilities of Local Authorities for the 
statutory duties that they hold for both maintained schools and academies. It includes 
funding for Admissions, School Forum coordination, copyright licences and centrally 
retained duties. The allocation is based on a formula using pupil numbers (90%), free 
school meals (Ever 6, 10%) with an area cost adjustment applied. The indicative rate 
per pupil for 2022/23 is up by £1.90 to £36.09 which is a small £0.155m increase in 
the block total compared to the previous year. 
 
8. Early Years Block 
The allocation of £35.337m is based on the census which took place in January 2020 
although in previous years this would have been updated for the January 2021 
census but due to the pandemic different arrangements have been made since 
attendance numbers would not have been a true reflection of the position at that 
time. A further census was carried out in May 2021 which will be used to update 
funding levels and the provisional report identified significant increases in the 

Page 22



numbers of 3 and 4 year olds attending. A statement from the DFE has clarified that 
the updated figures should be available in November 2021. 
 
9. Next steps/timetable 
December 2021 – announcement of Dedicated Schools Grant for 2022/23 updated 
for data changes arising from the October 2021 school census and other censuses 
for additional needs. 
13th January 2022 – Forum to agree final recommendations on the school funding 
formula for 2022/23 
28h February 2022 – Individual 2022/23 school budgets issued. 

 

Page 23



 Annex A 
 

Schools receiving minimum per pupil funding and funding floor uplifts in the 
DfE’s 2022/23 Indicative NFF 

 

 
 

Page 24



Annex B 
Local Authority Teaching Union Facilities 2021 Report for Schools’ Forum  

Overview  

LA facilities time allows teaching unions to provide Gloucestershire schools access to effective 

statutory and collective consultation, bargaining and individual representation from trained 

and accredited local teaching union officials. Consequently, school leaders and managers also 

have access to a valuable resource in the resolution of workplace issues and disputes. This 

allows LA schools to meet all statutory and procedural entitlements to union representation, 

which include:  

• capability  

• grievance  

• disciplinaries  

• long term absence  

• pay and grading appeals  

• redundancy and restructuring consultations (all relevant unions)  

• equality and discrimination issues  

• introduction of new or revised policies and procedures  

• health and safety issues  

It also allows local officers to respond to the large proportion of queries for informal advice 

from members, via phone and email, which result in issues being dealt with without having to 

involve the school or without escalation to any formal procedure. We strongly believe that this 

de-escalation saves head teachers a substantial amount of time and helps to enhance school 

cohesiveness.  

To enable a certified union representative to be available, facilities time allows for:  

• time off for relevant training  

• time to prepare for the meeting  

• travel time  

• “follow up” time  

Elected County Union representatives – currently Tony Chong (TC) and Andrew Birkett (AB) 

(NASUWT), Sarah Murphy and David Hampson (SM, DH) (NEU) are trained in current 

employment law and related matters, have an excellent working knowledge of procedures and 

have considerable experience in bringing issues to a speedy conclusion and resolving disputes. 

They work across the county and hence have an understanding of how disputes and employee 

issues have been resolved in a mutually acceptable way across the whole of the 

Gloucestershire building up a substantial amount of local knowledge. This provides a unique 

insight into the background and historical development of local schools. This expertise is 

supported by high-level regular training arranged and funded by the respective teacher unions 

(not by facilities funding). They have access to resources, colleagues and solicitors at regional 

Page 25



and national level who provide information and advice on policy and professional matters and 

on employment relations issues.  

 

What are the implications of not buying this service?  

Without this service LA schools would individually be responsible for meeting all statutory 

obligations (for example: individual right to representation and legal obligation to consult on 

redundancies and staff changes) from their own budget. Schools would be taking on 

responsibility for agreeing, co-ordinating and paying for release time and paid time off for 

duties and training of their own school-based reps. This release would be in addition to the 

normal training required by School Representatives and would need to replicate the training 

undertaken by County representatives to enable those functions to be fulfilled at school level 

rather than through the buy-in scheme. This would be necessary if the school is to meet its 

statutory obligations in respect of trade union duties for which money is delegated to schools 

through the funding formula. The cost of training school reps to this level would, however, be 

considerably greater than that of the current facilities arrangements. The cost at £3.05 per 

student means that to the majority of primary schools this service will cost just a few hundreds 

of pounds. 

In addition, these trained school-based reps would have to be released from lessons to 

provide the support required by their colleagues. LA facilities funding pays for the availability 

of county representatives to respond to schools’ issues.  

If the service were not de-delegated then TC, AB, DH and SM are concerned over the number 

of schools that would not ‘buy in’ to the service because of an admin oversight and hence 

would create a really burdensome and unnecessary workload for these representatives in 

chasing the schools for payment. 

All other areas of trade union work and representation are paid for by member subscriptions. 

With minor variations, this is the same for all recognised teacher unions including the 

Headteacher associations. Some examples of work paid for by subscriptions are:  

• Regional staffing team including regional officials who undertake serious and high-level case 

work (for example NCTL cases, external exam malpractice and employment tribunal cases).  

• Legal advice and support including solicitor teams  

• Campaigning and policy work – locally, regionally and nationally  

• National telephone advice line for all members and reps to access seven days a week  

• Website advice and resources  

• Workplace reps training programme  

• Advance training programmes for county representatives  

• CPD programmes and courses for members of the NEU and NASUWT  

Gloucestershire officials (TC, AB, SM and DH) receive paid release time from the facilities 

funding to provide advice, support and representation (a summary to follow). The time is 

allocated on the basis of the respective membership of each union in the county. We promote 

Page 26



and maintain partnership working, best practice and consistency across the county. We work 

with schools and academies to facilitate early resolution of difficulties to reduce the risk of 

disputes or legal claims. TC, AB, SM and DH, in many instances work collaboratively within 

schools.  

 

How facilities time was spent in 2020-2021 by NEU and NASUWT 

Report for Schools' Forum by Sarah Murphy (District and Branch Secretary Gloucestershire 

NEU)  

From September 2020 I have been carrying out casework on behalf of National Education 

Union Members for 3.5 days per week funded through Union Facilities Time. My colleague 

David Hampson has been in receipt of two days per week facilities funding. 

We currently have 122 Work Place Representatives (Reps) who have also supported their 

colleagues in schools.  

I receive casework via our Advice Line, our Regional Office and direct from members.  

During the past year I have supported numerous members including teaching assistants and 

HLTAs, teachers (including supply), TLR holders, assistant head teachers and head teachers.  

Breakdown of cases September 2020 – August 2021:  

• Disciplinary 29 • Sickness/ R to W/ absence 18 • Restructuring/ Redundancies 45 • Flexible 

working and part time issues 14 • Grievance 10 • Whistleblowing 2 •Capability 22 • Contract 

Issues 27 • Maternity/Paternity Issues 18 • Pay disputes 21 • H & S and injuries at work 7 • 

Appraisal 5 • Workload 16 • Covid 87 • Equality – racism issues 3 •Pension Queries 7• Other 

66 

Total 397  

Distribution across Educational Institution:  

Primary 45%, Secondary 34%, Independent 10%, APS/Special School 8%, Advisory Teacher 

Service/Hospital Service 1%, Supply staff 2%.  

It is important to recognise that as union representatives and caseworkers we see it as a 

priority to resolve issues within education settings swiftly and constructively for all those 

involved. We visit schools to speak to members on a collective and individual basis, members 

contact us directly by email on a daily basis, we speak over the phone and meet with members 

out of school. Head teachers and HR representatives call us directly.  

Advice is sought via email from us 24 hours a day with the nature of the query or incident 

being completely unpredictable. Our role will often involve ‘coaching’ with the result that 

teachers return to the classroom ready to teach again without the headteacher probably even 

being aware that their staff member has raised a concern. 

Sarah Murphy 

District and Branch Secretary Gloucestershire NEU 

 

Page 27



 

Report for 2020 to 2021  

Mr A Chong: Gloucestershire Federation and Negotiating Secretary and Local Association 

Secretary for Gloucester Severnside. An Accredited Caseworker, working for N.A.S.U.W.T. two 

days a week funded through Union Facility Time.  

The second colleague – Local Secretary Cheltenham Cotswold and an Accredited Caseworker, 

continued to be assigned taking one day a fortnight, time funded from the Facility has been 

included due to the ever - increasing amount and complexity of casework in Gloucestershire 

and they are also funded through Union Facility Time. 

Work Place [School and College] Representatives have also contributed to supporting member 

colleagues and employers. 

Nature of work: The face and voice of NASUWT in Gloucestershire, providing a point of 

contact for members - regardless of their setting - concerning every aspect of their current 

employment. As well as ensuring that possible future working conditions and pay as qualified 

professional educators are within the framework of Employment law. 

The benefits of the role to members: For members the benefits are many but crucially it is 

having an easily contactable local point of contact with a person who has an in-depth 

understanding and knowledge of the Gloucestershire Education landscape. That contact is 

then in turn able to access the expertise and knowledge of a National professional 

organisation dedicated solely for Teachers, regardless of their educational setting. 

Individual cases:  

These are cases that are recorded at and generated from the N.A.S.U.W.T. Regional Centre in 

Exeter for Gloucestershire. 

During the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021, there were some eighty individual 

member cases from across educational settings [an increase of 33.3% from the last reporting 

period] who received direct support. 

The following list indicates the type of educational institutions members worked.  

Secondary  26      Independent Schools 7  Supply   2 

Primary           29    Special Schools  2   

Infant   6    Further Education 3  Alternative Provision 

2   

This Casework ranged from – redundancies arising from internal re-organisations prompted by 

financial pressures, parental / student / colleague complaints, staff grievances, Directed Time 

Calendar – not being made available or indeed completed, Maternity Leave, Performance 

Management, and latterly specifically the implementation of increased employer 

contributions to the T.P.S. [Teachers’ Pension Scheme] through to implementation of 

NASUWT’s Action Short of Strike Action. 

Additionally, there were some two hundred and forty ‘one off’ member contacts made, an 

increase of 75% from last year. 

Page 28



Collective Cases:  Ten 

Two cases concerned – Schools forming a Trust. 

Three cases concerned – New School policies [ Performance Management / Appraisal] 

Four cases concerned – possible withdrawal from T.P.S. One of which led to Industrial Action 

the first in the Independent sector. 

One case – regarding Management approach and practice that led to the first Industrial Action 

taken in Gloucestershire this century. 

General Policy requests: Fourteen  

These have included areas such as: Pay Progression, Performance Management, Redundancy, 

Attendance and Competency. 

Corona Virus [CoVid19] 

This reporting period 1st April 2020 through to 31st March 2021, has seen education generally 

experience actions and events that hopefully will never be experienced again. The actual cost 

to pupils, students, school staff, families and the schools that serve communities will never be 

known. The impact on all those involved within Education will be felt unfortunately, for many 

years to come. 

Mr. A. Chong      7th July 2021 

Page 29



Annex C 

Consultation on National Funding Formula (NFF) proposed changes (Link) 

The National Funding Formula (NFF) is currently being used to calculate notional 

individual schools allocations before being aggregated to local authorities. Local 

authorities then distribute the funding to their schools using a flexed, ‘soft’ version of 

the NFF. This flexed version can use certain different factors and weightings which 

vary from those in the NFF. The DfE’s ultimate aim is for schools to receive their 

allocations directly via the NFF and this consultation proposes how that transition to 

a hard NFF can take place. The closing date for responses is 30th September 2021. 

From 2023-24 the local formulae must begin to align more to the national formula in 

local authorities where their formula significantly differs from the NFF. This involves 

not only aligning the use of measures but also beginning to bring the weightings for 

these measures nearer to the NFF figures.  

There are also questions on the funding year (moving from financial year April to 

March to an academic year for maintained schools), the schools forum, central 

services and SEND. 

The NFF is already used to determine funding between local authority areas across 

the country, but the final ambition is to use the formula to allocate funding to 

individual schools. The aim being for funding to be the same where need is the same 

and for the system of schools funding to be more transparent. The consultation also 

highlights the Government’s ambition for all schools to be under “strong multi-

academy trusts”.  

There is no fixed target date by which all schools will receive their allocations via the 

‘hard’ NFF (i.e., not via the local formulae), and protections (such as the minimum 

funding guarantee) will remain in place as part of this transition to the new formula. 

This will help to minimise disruption for schools and ensure that no school sees a 

reduction in its per-pupil funding. The Pupil Premium and Covid recovery funding will 

continue to be separate streams of funding and are not affected by this consultation. 

Current Allocations 

Currently, the NFF is used to calculate allocations for each school which are then 

aggregated and passed to the local authority (LA) for distribution. The LA uses a 

flexible version of the NFF (the ‘soft’ NFF) to distribute the funding to its schools. The 

DfE has set some parameters for local formulae, but it is still possible for a school to 

currently receive funding that is different to that which it would receive under the 

‘hard’ NFF.  

The consultation states that, out of 150 education-providing LAs: 105 have moved 

towards their allocations, of these 75 used the ‘hard’ NFF-determined allocations in 

Page 30

https://consult.education.gov.uk/funding-policy-unit/completing-our-reforms-to-the-nff/


2021-22. The implication is that the remaining 45 LAs have been moving away from 

the NFF when making their allocations to schools.  

Part of the local flexibility includes using different weightings for the formula factors – 

and there remain large variances in these figures. The consultation paper highlights 

those pupils with English as an additional language (EAL) attract £200 in East Riding 

of Yorkshire and £3,200 in Westminster. The NFF figure is £1,485. There are other 

similar examples where local funding varies greatly from the NFF. The different local 

formulae, if applied across the country, would mean that schools in the same 

circumstances as each other could receive very different funding – which is neither 

consistent nor fair.  

 

Recommendation 4 Forum members agree or put forward suggested 

amendments to the consultation questions below on reforms to the NFF. 

 

Consultation Proposals 

The DfE proposes that, subject to the further development of premises and growth 

funding factors, all NFF funding factors/measures be included – pupil-led and school-

led – without further local adjustment through local formulae. 

Question 1: Do you agree that our aim should be that the directly applied NFF 

should include all pupil-led and school-led funding factors and that all funding 

distributed by the NFF should be allocated to schools on the basis of the hard 

formula, without further local adjustment through local formulae?  

We agree that the aim should be to fund all schools on the same formula basis 

through a hard formula without the need for further local adjustment. However that 

does not mean that we agree the current NFF funding model is correct or fair to all 

schools and we recommend that Government seriously consider further review of the 

formula, with an emphasis on ensuring the additional needs factors in the formula are 

delivered outside of the minimum per pupil funding (MPPF) level calculation. This will 

ensure that these additional needs factors actually make a difference to the funding 

for schools that are in most need and not absorbed and lost within the MPPF level 

calculation. 

This is a view put forward by the F40 group who have developed a proposal on how 

to tackle this issue. The proposal can be found here - https://www.f40.org.uk/f40-

proposal-april-2019/  

The DfE will review and consult again on the part of the NFF that distributes funding 

for premises (including PFI, split site and rental premises) – which is currently based 

Page 31

https://www.f40.org.uk/f40-proposal-april-2019/
https://www.f40.org.uk/f40-proposal-april-2019/


on historic spending. The DfE welcome any early input as to how these measures 

can be added to the ‘hard’ NFF.  

PFI costs are currently funded by the DfE based on costs in the previous year and 

allocated through a local formula. The DfE are examining the option of a more 

bottom-up funding model, whereby additional costs incurred by PFI schools are 

examined and then used as a basis for their calculation of a PFI factor allocation in 

the NFF – rather than using uprated historic spend. No change is anticipated to PFI 

funding until at least 2024-25.  

For schools with split sites, the DfE make funding allocations based on the previous 

year’s spending, but it is up to LAs and School Forums to determine how that is 

distributed – i.e., as a fixed lump sum or a per-pupil amount. The DfE are exploring 

an approach where split site details are collected with the possibility of it being 

included in the NFF. This will also be consulted on separately.  

Question 2: Do you have any comments on how we could reform premises 

funding during the transition to the directly applied NFF? 

An NFF formula for funding split sites should be developed to ensure a consistent 

approach nationally. The DfE should gather information on additional cost 

requirements resulting from having a split site from the relevant schools to consider 

as part of developing that formula factor. This should be done on the basis of the 

number of sites and not the number of pupils. A pupil level funding calculation won’t 

accurately reflect the additional costs incurred. The costs associated to 100 pupils on 

a second site, compared to 100 pupils on two additional sites would vary 

significantly. 

Exceptional rents costs typically relate to schools that have to hire premises to use 

for PE or assemblies as the existing school does not have those facilities. As those 

costs will typically vary widely, one consideration could be for the ESFA to pay those 

costs directly like they will be doing in 2022/23 for rates bills. Alternatively a formula 

that allocates an amount per pupil for each facility not present in the school could be 

considered. This could cease if the school moved to new premises or was extended 

to provide the missing facilities. 

The existing rule of only being able to allocate exceptional rents costs if there are 

less than 5% of the schools in the LA needing the funding should be removed, as this 

could result in all schools in a LA who are currently receiving this funding suddenly 

receiving nothing if one more school qualified and put the total over the 5% 

threshold. 

Consultation Proposals: Growth Funding and Falling Rolls 

Funding allocations are currently based on the number of pupils in the census from 

the autumn before – this means that there is a time lag for both a falling and rising 

Page 32



roll. The DfE do not feel that moving to a system based on actual numbers would 

provide better stability and predictability.  

Growth funding for new schools is currently inconsistent across the country. The DfE 

see the NFF as a way to achieve consistency and will consult further on this in the 

second consultation.  

At present all academy trusts provide the ESFA with a forecast of pupil numbers for 

the coming year which is then used to calculate any growth funding outside the NFF.  

When the hard NFF is implemented, the Government proposes  

 Collecting forecast pupil numbers from local authorities and academy 

trusts (this is already recorded by LAs) 

 Using national, standardised criteria to determine which schools are 

eligible for growth funding. The main one would involve the size of the 

forecast growth – growth which is deemed “insignificant” is expected to 

be managed within the school’s budget for that year.  

 Standardising the amount that eligible schools receive so that broadly 

the same proportion is spent on future growth as at present.  

As is the case now, growth that doesn’t materialise will be subject to an adjustment 

process, with payments being adjusted or recouped as necessary following the 

subsequent census. The consultation says “We would not expect to make 

adjustments in cases where pupil numbers fell slightly short of forecasts. We … 

recognises the inherent uncertainty in forecasts, and that schools may face similar 

levels of additional cost where an extra class was required but fewer pupils than 

forecast actually materialised…”.  

There would also be a second opportunity to submit growth numbers after the NFF 

has been calculated, for schools where the growth was uncertain.  

Aside from general growth in numbers, schools can also grow as a result of 

becoming more popular with parents. Unlike the standard growth funding the DfE do 

not think that it would be plausible to offer funding for popular schools based on 

forecasts of popularity. Instead, they propose: 

 Making funding available for schools which have seen an increase in 

popularity, after being recently sponsored by a multi-academy trust 

which has improved the school’s performance. This funding would, 

therefore, remain targeted at academies, rather than all schools – to 

reflect the “unique role that academy trusts have in turning around 

previously under-performing schools”.  

Page 33



 Using the in-year autumn census to check which academies that meet 

the criteria above have experienced significant in-year growth.  

 Making the amount of funding consistent with basic need growth funding 

allocations. 

‘Falling rolls’ funding also provides schools with additional revenue funding in 

situations where there is evidence that the fall is short-term (up to 3 years) so that 

capacity required in the near future is not put at risk. This funding is only available to 

schools judged as “good” or “outstanding” at their last OFSTED inspection.  

Falling roll funding will only be provided where schools have already experienced at 

least one year’s decrease to their number on roll, in addition to the forecast decrease 

in the coming year.  

Question 3: Do you agree with our proposal to use national, standardised 

criteria to allocate all aspects of growth and falling rolls funding? 

Yes, standardising criteria across the country would be in line with the approach 

used for other elements of the NFF and ensure schools in similar circumstances 

received similar funding. 

Question 4: Do you have any comments on our proposed approach to growth 

and falling rolls funding? 

We disagree that funding should only be targeted at academies in cases where 

schools which have seen an increase in popularity, after being recently sponsored by 

a multi-academy trust which has improved the school’s performance. The DfE have 

always stated that all schools should be treated similarly and fairly. On that basis if 

there was an increase in popularity following improved performance in a maintained 

school they should also be entitled to the same funding. 

Currently if maintained schools want to have an opportunity to receive in-year 

additional funding for a significant increase between October census pupil numbers, 

they have to de-delegate towards a fund for this from their delegated budget. 

Therefore if they were not given access to the funding mentioned above it would 

create an unfair system whereby academies could access additional funding through 

the NFF without making a contribution for significant pupil increases, while 

maintained schools would have to contribute through de-delegation to be able to 

access funds for significant pupil increases. 

There is no clear rationale here for treating maintained schools and academies 

differently. 

Consultation Proposals: Transitioning to the directly applied NFF for schools 

The current ‘soft’ application of the NFF by LAs allows them to include a ‘looked after 

children’ measure that is not in the NFF and alter the weightings on the other 

Page 34



measures including the lump sum and basic per pupil amount. As highlighted above, 

some LAs use a local formula that moves schools further away from their NFF 

allocation. The DfE propose to gradually move LA formulae closer to the NFF, in 

advance of moving to a fully ‘hard’ NFF. This will help to smooth the transition to the 

NFF.  

The DfE want to do this gradually to measure the impacts as they move towards the 

full implementation of the NFF. This means no new restrictions on LA formulae in 

2022-23, but from 2023-24 all LAs will be obliged to use each of the NFF factors in 

its local formulae, and only those factors (which would mean that LAs would no 

longer be able to use the ‘looked after children’ factor in their formulae as it doesn’t 

feature in the NFF).  

There would be an exception to this requirement – any NFF factors that are 

significantly reformed in 2023-24 (e.g., premises factors) will not be compulsory for 

inclusion in the first year of introduction.  

As well as ensuring the local formulae use the same factors as the NFF, the DfE also 

want to bring the cash values (weightings) assigned to them closer to the ones in the 

’hard’ NFF. Because the local formulae use cash values that vary in distance from 

the NFF weightings the DfE will require a minimum percentage movement rather 

than a cash figure. This will begin in 2023-24 and be based on a comparison of the 

local formula and the NFF in 2022-23.  

 In 2023-24 each LA must move its local formula factors at least 10% 

nearer to the NFF factor value, when compared to 2022-23. 

 LAs will not be allowed to “overshoot” the NFF value – for example, if the 

weighting of the factor is currently below the NFF value, it cannot be 

increased to be above it.  

 According to DfE modelling this will only cause a very small increase in 

the number of schools on the MFG floor – a 0.04% increase 

 This movement will increase to 15% closer in 2024-25 and 20% closer 

in 2025-26 but DfE say that they will monitor the impact of the 10% 

movement before confirming these plans.  

The consultation paper says that the DfE have considered a quicker pace of change 

– 25% in 2023-24 but, although it would give them a better idea of the effect of 

moving towards the NFF, it could cause too much turbulence.  

Page 31 of the consultation provides some examples of the movement in formula 

factors. The DfE plan to send each LA a table specifying the range within which their 

formula factors must fall between for 2023-24, as well as subsequent years.  

Example:  

Page 35



• Assuming a factor has a value of £600 in the NFF in 2022-23, and an LA 

has set a local factor value of £500 (a £100 difference)  

• The LA would be required to set a value for 2023-24 that was within £90 

of the NFF value (10% of the £100 difference) – i.e., at least £510. 

• However, the NFF is being continually reviewing, so if the NFF value 

increased to £620, then that LA would still be required to set a factor 

value of no more than £90 below the NFF value – i.e., at least £530.  

The DfE will not require LAs to move factor values nearer to the NFF if they are 

already very close (referred to as “mirroring”). This is currently judged to be when 

factors are within 1% of each other but the DfE are asking for views on this.  

Question 5: Do you agree that, in 2023-24, each LA should be required to use 

each of the NFF factors (with the exception of any significantly reformed 

factors) in its local formulae?  

Yes agree, all schools should be funded on the same formula and this should include 

no differences in the factors applied. 

Question 6: Do you agree that all LA formulae, except those that already 

‘mirroring’ the NFF, should be required to move closer to the NFF from 2023-

24, in order to smooth the transition to the hard NFF for schools?  

Yes agree, this will be necessary to ensure the same formula for all is eventually 

used. However it is vital that as part of the process the formula is as accurate and as 

fair as possible and the DfE should therefore, as previously stated, seriously consider 

the views on formula changes being put forward by the F40 group. 

Question 7: Do you agree that LA formulae factor values should move 10% 

closer to the NFF, compared with their distance from the NFF in 2022-23? If 

you do not agree, can you please explain why?  

Yes, although in Gloucestershire the Schools Forum and LA have worked hard to 

ensure that our local formula reflects the NFF as closely as possible, as such we 

would want to see larger increases in later years so that all LAs and schools move 

towards the NFF as swiftly as possible. 

Question 8: As we would not require LAs to move closer to the NFF if their 

local formulae were already very close to the NFF, do you have any comments 

on the appropriate threshold level? 

Ultimately, we would want to see as small an impact as possible for schools when 

moving to the Hard NFF. As such the 1% threshold feels like the maximum level we 

would expect for all schools to be mirroring the NFF in timely fashion over the coming 

years. 

Page 36



As the formula moves towards the NFF there will be some schools who find 

themselves receiving the MFG protection and others who gain. This could lead to 

pressure on LA budgets – but LAs have some flexibility in setting the MFG and 

capping or scaling schools’ year-on-year gains in order to address affordability in 

their local formula. 

During the second consultation (to follow) the DfE will examine whether LAs should 

be given greater flexibilities from 2023-24 over the level of the MFG in order to 

manage affordability, or whether this is not needed given their ability to cap and scale 

gains. The DfE want no school to see a cash loss in per-pupil funding as a result of 

the move towards the hard NFF.   

The DfE also want all local formulae to use the “EAL3” measure – where pupils 

attract additional funding if they entered the education system in the last 3 years and 

English is not their first language. Currently LAs have some flexibility over the 

number of years.  

LAs are also allowed flexibility over the application of the sparsity measures – to 

target remote and small schools. This flexibility will be allowed to continue in 2023-24 

as there has been a new methodology introduced for calculating sparsity distances in 

2022-23.  

Question 9: Do you agree that the additional flexibility for LAs in the EAL 

factor, relating to how many years a pupil has been in the school system, 

should be removed from 2023-24?  

Yes agree, this will be consistent with having the same NFF factors and rates for all. 

However, we would reiterate the same point about the additional needs factors sitting 

outside of the MPPF level, so that schools see the real benefits of the additional 

factors  

Question 10: Do you agree that the additional flexibilities relating to the 

sparsity factor should remain in place for 2023-24? 

No, all schools should be moved onto the same NFF sparsity factor to ensure a 

consistent approach nationally. 

Consultation Proposals: Impact on Central Schools Service 

Moving towards the NFF means that LAs will have less flexibility with what to do with 

their remaining DSG. The DfE are considering how central services are delivered 

and funded as well as addressing the current variation. The DfE want to see the 

move to a school-based system with schools having maximum control over their 

funding.  

Page 37



Central service delivery, either by LAs, or by academy trusts, varies considerably 

across the country and the consultation paper groups them into the following 

headings: 

• LA’s ongoing responsibilities for all (maintained and academy) 

schools – for example, admissions and school attendance monitoring.  

Funded via the Central Schools Services Block (CSSB) of the DSG.  

• “De-delegated” functions that the LA does for maintained schools 

and Multi-Academy Trusts (MATS) do for academies. Generally 

funded through a top-slice from school budgets. Includes functions such 

as outdoor education. School Improvement functions are delivered by 

the LA but are provided for separately. 

• Optional traded services for all schools – optional services, paid for 

from individual school’s budgets.  

The DfE suggest that there could be a list of services which should sit best under 

each heading, creating a clear list of central services and shifting more towards the 

de-delegated and traded services end of provision. This will be discussed more 

technically in a further consultation. Options include: 

• Continuing to fund statutory duties, such as some admissions duties and 

perhaps adding some non-statutory ones where it makes sense for the 

LA to have oversight.  

• Continuing the existing scheme where DfE centrally purchase copyright 

licences for all state-funded schools but possibly adding the funding to 

the schools’ block  

• If there is a reduction in the CSSB of DSG (with more services de-

delegated or traded), considering moving the funding back to the 

MHCLG local government finance settlement.  

Question 11: are there any comments you wish to make on the proposals we 

have made regarding ongoing central school services, including on whether in 

the future central school services funding could move to the Local 

Government Finance Settlement (LGFS)? 

Yes agree, it is important that funding continues for statutory services such as 

admissions and that the LA is able to retain oversight of them. The source of funding 

for central services between DSG and mainstream funding does complicate the 

accounting and management arrangements and it would be advisable to move the 

remaining funding to LGFS. What would need to be recognised in the LGFS is that 

future increases in the school population would put pressure on these services and 

would require additional funding to be allocated through the LGFS. The scheme to 

fund copyright licences has been beneficial and if there is no central school services 

Page 38



Block (CSSB) going forward this should be moved to the schools block and funded 

accordingly for changes in costs. 

The CSSB also includes a historic commitments element, relating to expenditure by 

LAs on commitments entered into before 2013, on activities which are not 

appropriate to be funded from DSG. It was anticipated in 2013 that this spend would 

gradually reduce over time, but some commitments are taking longer to unwind than 

expected. Therefore from 2020-21 the DfE have reduced this funding by 20% a year 

and propose removing it completely once the hard NFF comes into effect. Funding 

for unavoidable legacy payments (e.g., those for termination of employment costs 

and prudential borrowing) that some LAs will still be tied into, will be replaced with a 

separate legacy grant. 

Question 12: Do you agree with the proposal for a legacy grant to replace 

funding for unavoidable termination of employment and prudential borrowing 

costs? We will also invite further evidence on this at a later stage. 

The historic commitments should be removed by the time the NFF comes into effect. 

Any remaining unavoidable commitments should be reviewed annually to confirm the 

requirement for a legacy grant to be awarded. Plans and options to reduce them 

should also be submitted. 

Consultation Proposals: Supporting SEND Provision 

The consultation paper says that the DfE see this move to the hard NFF as an 

opportunity to make the funding to support SEND provision in mainstream schools 

“fairer, more consistent, simpler, more transparent and more efficient and 

predictable”. 

The Government’s SEND Review has been delayed again but once it is published it 

will include recommendations which will have implications for how support for pupils 

with SEND is delivered and funded in mainstream schools. The second consultation 

will consider these recommendations.  

In 2018 the DfE found and consulted on, a set of proxy indicators to reflect the likely 

prevalence of additional needs, including SEND, within a mainstream school – 

namely low prior attainment and deprivation. The DfE do not wish to use the actual 

number of pupils with Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCP) or SEN as they do 

not consider them to be consistent – a child who may be eligible for an EHCP in one 

area may not be in another. They also consider it to be a perverse incentive for 

schools to identify more children as needing support.  

The consultation goes on to recognise there are pressure on High Needs block 

funding, where demand for EHCPs has increased. Some of this pressure has been 

addressed by LAs through transfers between the schools block and high needs 

block, but the DfE want this practice to end as it is not a sustainable solution and also 

erodes the benefit for schools of moving to a ‘hard’ NFF.  

Page 39



The paper goes on to say that: “The department is currently working to address 

these pressures on high needs budgets and support LAs to manage their high needs 

budgets more sustainably”. 

Last year the DfE launched an intervention programme working with some LAs with 

the highest DSG deficits, supporting them to reform their high needs systems and 

associated spending to make it more sustainable. The DfE plan to shortly publish a 

commentary on that programme to date, with recommendations that LAs could 

consider in tackling their own DSG deficits, including specific case studies from LAs 

who have developed approaches to support the sustainability of their high needs 

systems. The consultation paper adds that “alongside this, a central aim of the SEND 

Review is to make recommendations that will tackle the underlying causes of costs 

pressures in the high needs system and lead to a more financially sustainable 

system in the longer-term”.  

The second NFF consultation will consider whether there remains a need to keep a 

mechanism in place of the current block transfers where LAs continue to face 

unavoidable cost pressures on their High Needs budgets.  

Consultation Proposals: Schools Forums 

Implementation of the NFF will lead to a change in the role of the Schools Forum. 

The forum currently decides on things such as whether to approve transfers between 

blocks and the amount of funding top-sliced for de-delegated central services. 

Despite the changing role they will continue to play an important part in local decision 

making and stakeholder engagement – specifically with regard to early years, high 

needs and central services – see Annex B of the consultation for a comprehensive 

list of ‘before and after’ functions. 

The DfE plan to review the role and membership of the Schools Forum once the 

SEND review has been published and progress is made towards the implementation 

of the NFF. 

Consultation Proposals: The Funding Year 

Currently maintained schools are funded by financial year April to March whilst 

Academies are funded by academic year September to August. Academies chose 

this pattern as it fitted with their business activities, but it means that for 5 months of 

the year the two will potentially be receiving different funding for schools with the 

same characteristics. This situation does not align with the intention of moving to a 

hard NFF - that schools with the same characteristics should receive the same 

amount of funding. 

The consultation paper states that most schools plan their staffing and spending on 

an academic year basis, adding that changes to teacher’s pay, which makes up a 

significant element of a school’s budget, also takes effect from the start of the 

Page 40



academic year. Therefore, the DfE are interested to know whether there is a case for 

moving maintained schools’ funding to an academic year basis.  

They are aware that this may cause accounting complications with the financial 

reporting cycle being mismatched with the funding cycle but are interested to hear 

the pros and cons of such a move.  

Question 13: How strongly do you feel that we should further investigate the 

possibility of moving maintained schools to being funded on an academic year 

basis?  

Whilst we recognise the benefits of aligning the funding years for academies and 

maintained schools, it remains challenging whilst local authorities are required to 

report by financial year; as such it makes sense for maintained schools to remain 

funded by financial year. 

To understand the issues in full the DfE should discuss with the Chartered Institute of 

Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) the implications a proposed change like 

this would have and whether or not it would be feasible or sensible. 

Question 14: Are there any advantages or drawbacks to moving maintained 

schools to being funded on an academic year basis that you feel we should be 

aware of? 

Having to separate budgets and spend between financial years would be a key 

drawback, which is linked to the need for LA’s to report on a April to March financial 

year. This would mean that Maintained schools with their own local bank accounts 

would have to complete an extra closedown at the end of the academic year as well 

as the usual financial year end.  

We are not aware of significant issues caused to maintained schools from operating 

a financial year budget particularly while there is still a requirement for a financial 

year outturn to be completed by those schools. As above we recommend the DfE 

consult with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

about the accounting issues for schools and LAs if a change took place. 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

High Needs Report  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

16 September 2021 

Type of Decision For information  

Background 
Documents 

High Needs Strategy 

Authors Philip Haslett, Head of Education Strategy and Development 

Purpose of Report To provide an update on: 

 the forecast financial performance of the High Needs block in 

2021/22. 

 SEND trends and in particular the number of EHCPs support by the 

High Needs block. 

Key 
Recommendations 

Forum members are asked to note the 2021/22 High Needs forecast, the 

variance to budget and associated commentary. 

 

Resource 
Implications 

Note that the High Needs block is forecasting a £4,105,300 overspend in 
2021/22.  This is an increase of £532,000 on the budgeted overspend of 
£3,573,300. 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



1. High Needs – Forecast for 2021/22 

1.1. The table below shows the High Needs forecast, less recoupment, as at the end of July 

2021. This shows a worsening picture for the High Needs block this year.  The key 

variance, £532,000, is within the High Needs unallocated budget line.  This is comprised of 

a significant adjustment of £282,000 in the import/export calculation and a £250,000 

adjustment for the mainstream top up budgets, to support additional therapies and bespoke 

SEN packages.  The cost of therapies and bespoke packages is not an additional cost, but 

should have been included in the initial budget planning. 

1.2. The import and export adjustment process and the associated increase in costs this year 

are explained in section 2 of this report. 

1.3. We have also seen a rise in the number of children with an EHCP moving into FE and 

College placements, this has resulted in a forecast overspend of £172,000. This is due to 

an overall rise in the number of pupils entering post-16 with an EHCP, partly due to the 

overall increase in EHCPs in the system, but also due to the creation of more opportunities 

in the mainstream FE and post-16 sector.  

1.4. These additional post-16 opportunities have resulted in a reduction in the use of 

independent post-16 providers, saving around £200,000 on 20 places.  This has helped 

create a forecast underspend in the Independent Special Schools budget of £51,900. 

1.5. Finally, it is worth noting the rise in primary and secondary mainstream forecasts, £69,00 

and £96,000 respectively. This is directly linked to a rise, in excess of the historic trends, in 

the number of new EHCPs. Details of the rise in EHCPs are explored later in this report. 

1.6. As a result of the adjustments outlined above, the expected annual overspend in High 

Needs has moved from £3,573,300 to £4,105,300.  This is still a significant improvement  of 

over £1m on the overspend in 2020/21. 

High Needs Block
Budget

Forecast 

(July)

Variance to 

budget
Variance to 

prvs forecast

£000 £000 £000 £000

Alternative provision - places & top ups & services 5,476.7 5,467.6 -9.1 4.1

Alternative provision - Glos Hospital Education 2,030.7 2,017.3 -13.4 -11.9

EHCP Costs - College and FE 4,698.9 4,870.9 172.0 172.0

EHCP Costs - Early Years 233.5 233.5 0.0 0.0

EHCP Costs - Primary 7,239.3 7,308.6 69.3 69.3

EHCP Costs - Secondary 4,976.0 5,003.6 27.6 96.3

Excluded pupils -100.0 -137.0 -37.0 -37.0

LA Services and staffing 3,870.9 4,068.9 198.0 3.6

Independent Special Schools 17,262.7 17,207.1 -55.6 -51.9

Restorative Practice 200.0 200.5 0.5 -2.6

Special Centres 458.0 456.3 -1.7 -1.7

Special school provision 20,948.2 20,977.2 29.0 29.0

Support Services 1,286.1 1,238.9 -47.2 -30.1

Virtual School 620.3 620.3 0.0 -11.7

High Needs Unallocated -3,855.3 250.0 4,105.3 532.0

Rounding -0.2 -0.1 0.1 0.2

65,345.8 69,783.6 4,437.8 759.6  

1.7. As stated above the growth trend for EHCP numbers are on the rise.  The period from 

January 2020 to January 2021 saw an increase of 420 EHCPs, compared to the 350 we 

Page 44



budgeted for.  We are working through the details and impact of this growth to better 

understand the spike in numbers.  If this is sustained we will need to build these numbers 

into the 5-year recovery plan.  The 5-year plan is being updated and will be presented at 

the November schools Forum. 

1.8. Forum members will note that the forecast above is based on data from July.  The service 

teams are currently completing the September 2021 forecast with details of new starters in 

all establishments.  Early indications are that we are starting to see an impact from the 

increased numbers of EHCPs.  However, this work is not able to be completed in time for 

the publication of the Schools Forum report, so a detailed view of the updated forecast will 

be shared with members at the meeting.  This will include the 2% increase in top-up funding 

agreed at the last Schools Forum and ratified by the Local Authority. 

Forum members are asked to note the 2021/22 High Needs forecast, the variance to 

budget and associated commentary. 

2. Import and Export adjustment 

2.1. Most high needs funding is allocated to local authorities based on children and young 

people who live in their area, regardless of where they are educated. The import/export 

adjustment is intended to reflect the movement of high needs pupils and students between 

local authority areas, where they live in one authority area and attend a school or college in 

another, creating an additional financial cost to the latter authority. It is calculated as a net 

figure based on: 

 the number of high needs pupils and students educated at an institution in the local 

authority area, minus 

 the number of high needs pupils or students living in their area  

 the net number of pupils and students, either positive or negative, is then multiplied by 

£6,000 

2.2. In the import/export adjustment ESFA is considered the provider local authority for non-

maintained special schools (NMSS), special post-16 institutions (SPI) and certain centrally 

funded further education (FE) institutions. 

2.3. In Gloucestershire we are a net exporter which means that the number of Gloucestershire 

high needs pupils that other areas take (exports) is above the number of every high needs 

pupil that Gloucestershire takes in from another area (imports).  The data used by the 

ESFA to calculate the import/export adjustment is based on the local authority in which the 

pupil or student lives (known as the resident local authority) and the local authority in which 

the education setting is based (known as the provider local authority). This data is taken 

from the January school census and the February ILR figures, for the following financial 

year. (So for 2021/22 they will use the January 2021 census and the February 2021, figures 

which will not be available until after budget setting). 

2.4. The financial impact to the high needs budget is shown in the graph below (compared with 

the previous year): 

 

Page 45



 

 

Allocation Imports Exports Net Adjustment 

Original Adjustment (June 20 data) 128 271 -143 -858,000 

Revised Adjustment (June 21 data) 132 322 -190 -1,140,000 

Difference 4 51 -47 -282,000 

 

2.5. The outcome of the above means a deduction of £1,140,000 from Gloucestershire’s 21/22 

high needs funding block, compared to £858,000 in 20/21. A difference of -£282,000. 

2.6. The data used by the ESFA to calculate the import/export adjustment is the January school 

census and the February ILR figures, for the following financial year. (So for 2021/22 they 

will use the January 2021 census and the February 2021, figures which will not be available 

until after budget setting) 

2.7. The DfE provides each LA with a breakdown of the adjustment at setting level (please see 

attached). When looking at the detail please ignore the Gloucestershire column as the data 

contained in the both the import and export tabs. 

3. Growth trends for EHCPs 

3.1. As the growth trend for the number of EHCPs supported by the high needs budget 

has risen sharply this year, we have included a short report with more detailed 

information about SEN provision across the county.  This looks at local, national 

and statistical neighbour data. 

3.2. Forum members will note that the SEN2 data detailed in this report, shows that 

there were 4,342 children and young people aged 0 to 25 with an EHC plan 

maintained by the local authority in January 2021 compared to 3,922 in January 

2020.  This is the rise of 420 mentioned above and should it continue will impact on 

the ability to set a balanced budget within the 5-year High Needs plan. 

Page 46



3.3. As outlined in previous meetings and detailed in the JAN and High Needs strategies 

we remain focussed on enabling earlier intervention to support a reduction in the 

rise of EHCPs. This is a long-term sustainable model to address the issue, rather 

than addressing the challenge through the further reduction of services or funding. 

3.4. Changes to the funding model remain an essential part of this approach, but the 

long-term commitment of the school system and multi-agency partners to 

supporting early intervention is critical. 

4. Implementation of new funding model 

4.1. Since the last school’s forum meeting we have been working hard to finalise the 

new banded funding model ready for a trial implementation with a small cohort of 

schools in January 2022. 

4.2. The descriptors that support the new banding system have received feedback from 

all key stakeholders, including but not limited to schools, the Education Psychology 

Service, Advisory Teachers, SEND casework and parents and carers. There is a 

little more work to do on the Communication and Interaction descriptors, once 

completed they will be formally published with a clear annual review cycle.  

4.3. We are now working with a number of schools to develop provision maps that sit 

alongside each descriptor.  The provision maps will then be costed, so that we can 

assess the funding levels for each band.   

4.4. The descriptors, provision maps and proposed funding levels will be brought to the 

next schools forum for review and sign off. 

5. COVID recovery premium 

5.1. On the 6th September the Dfe announced details for the funding of the COVID 

recovery premium - Recovery premium funding - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). 

5.2. This information has been provided 48hrs before publication of schools forum 

documents, so we are assessing the impact of this funding for schools in 

Gloucestershire and will bring details to the meeting on the 16th September. 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Education Data 

Hub Monthly 

report  

 

 

 

 

 

  

July 2021 

 

 

P
age 49



Children and young people with Special 
Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 
 
There are two published sets of data relating to children and young 

people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).  These 

are: 

 Education, health and care plans: England – Information from the 

statutory SEN2 collection on children and young people aged 0 to 

25 with an Education, Health and Care (EHC) plan maintained by 

local authorities (see: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/education-health-and-

care-plans-england-2020). 

 Special educational needs in England – Information from the 

January school census on pupils with special educational needs 

(SEN) and SEN provision in schools (see: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/special-educational-

needs-in-england-january-2020), 

 

Pupils with Special Educational Needs 
(Source: Special educational needs in England, January 2020 School Census) 

 
The most recent published data is from the January 2020 school 

census. 

 
In Gloucestershire, the number of pupils with special educational needs 

(SEN) has continued to increase from 13,381 (14.4%) in January 2016 

to 16,251 (16.8%) in January 2020.  Nationally, 1,373,800 pupils have 

SEN, representing 15.5% of all pupils.  This is an increase from 14.9% 

of all pupils in 2019.  In the county, as nationally, this is driven by an 

increase in both the number of pupils with an Education, Health and 

Care (EHC) plan and with SEN Support. 

 
 

Figure 1: % of Pupils with Special Educational Needs (All schools),  
January 2015 to January 2020 

 
Pupils with an Education, Health and Care (EHC) plan  
 
In January 2020, 3,148 pupils (3.3%) in Gloucestershire had a 

statement or an EHC plan.  This is an increase of 229 compared to the 

previous year when 2,919 pupils (3.0%) were recorded as having a 

statutory plan.  Nationally the percentage of pupils with a statement or 

an EHC plan has also increased, from 3.1% (271,200) of the total pupil 

population in January 2019 to 3.3% (294,800) in January 2020.   

In Gloucestershire’s state-funded schools and academies, 2,936 pupils 

(3.3%) had a statement or an EHC plan compared to 2,753 pupils 

(3.1%) in 2019.  Nationally, 3.3% of pupils in state-funded schools 

(excluding state-funded nurseries) had an EHC plan compared to 3% in 

2019. 

 

Pupils with SEN Support 
 

Total SEND 

SEN Support / 
SEN without 
statement 

EHC plans / 
statements of 

SEN 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

%
 o

f 
A

ll 
P

u
p

ils
 

P
age 50

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/education-health-and-care-plans-england-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/education-health-and-care-plans-england-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/special-educational-needs-in-england-january-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/special-educational-needs-in-england-january-2020


A further 13,103 pupils (13.5%) in Gloucestershire have SEN support, 

an increase from 12,372 (12.8%) in 2019.  The number and proportion 

of pupils with SEN support has also increased nationally, from 11.9% of 

all pupils in 2019 to 12.1% in 2020.   

In Gloucestershire’s state-funded schools and academies, 11,728 

pupils (13.3%) have SEN support compared to 11,276 (12.8%) pupils in 

2019.  Nationally, 11.9% of pupils in state-funded schools (excluding 

state-funded nurseries) have SEN support compared to 11.7% in 2019. 

SEN Provision by school type 
 
In January 2020, 82.7% of Gloucestershire pupils with SEN attended 

state-funded primary and secondary schools (54.3% of pupils with an 

EHC plan and 89.5% with SEN support).  This is a decrease compared 

to the previous year (84.1%).  The percentage of pupils with SEN 

attending state-funded primary and secondary schools nationally has 

remained relatively constant (82% in January 2020 and 82.3% in 2019).     

In state-funded primary schools in Gloucestershire, 2.2% of pupils have 

an EHC plan, a marginal increase from 2.1% in 2019.  The percentage 

of pupils with SEN support has also risen from 14.7% in 2019 to 15.2% 

in 2020.  The percentage of pupils with SEN in state-funded primary 

schools is higher in the county than nationally, with 1.8% of pupils with 

an EHC plan (compared to 1.6% in 2019) and 12.8% with SEN support 

(up from 12.6% last year).  Pupils with SEN in state-funded primary 

schools constitute 51.2% of all pupils with SEN in the county compared 

to 49.9% nationally.  Proportions are slightly lower both locally and 

nationally compared to 2019 (52.8% and 50.8%, respectively).   

The percentage of pupils with an EHC plan in state-funded secondary 

schools remains constant at 1.6%.  The proportion of pupils with SEN 

support has increased from 10.9% to 11.4%.  In England, the 

percentage of pupils with an EHCP in state-funded secondary schools 

increased to 1.8% in January 2020 from 1.7% in 2019.  The percentage 

of pupils with SEN support increased from 10.8% to 11.1%. Overall, 

pupils in secondary schools make up 31.5% of all SEN pupils, this is 

slightly lower than in 2019 (31.3%).  In England, pupils in secondary 

schools with SEN account for 32.0% of all pupils with SEN (31.4% in 

2019).   

The number of pupils in state-funded special schools continues to rise, 

from 1,172 pupils on roll in January 2019 to 1,292 in January 2020 (an 

increase of 4.9%).  In England, the number of pupils in state-funded 

special schools has increased by 5.3%.  Pupils with SEN in state-

funded special schools constitute 7.6% of all pupils with SEN in the 

county compared to 9.3% nationally.       

Nationally there has also been a large increase in the percentage of 

pupils with an EHC plan in pupil referral units, rising from 13.4% in 2019 

to 16.4% in 2020.  However, in the county the proportion of pupils with 

an EHC plan has decreased from 19.8% (41 pupils) in 2019 to 15.5% 

(21 pupils) in 2020.  The percentage of pupils with SEN support has 

also fallen from 63.7% (132 pupils) in 2019 to 60.7% (82 pupils) in 

2020.  In England, the percentage of pupils with SEN support in pupil 

referral units has decreased from 67.6% to 64.9%.1  

The percentage of pupils with SEN in independent schools has also 

increased.  In January 2020, 168 pupils (2.1%) had an EHCP compared 

to 100 pupils (1.2%) in January 2019.  There were a further 1,287 pupils 

(15.9%) with SEN Support compared to 959 pupils (11.4%) the previous 

year.  Nationally the percentage of pupils with an EHC plan in 

independent schools has risen to 3.3%, the same as the percentage of 

all pupils over all schools. The percentage of pupils with SEN but 

without an EHC plan has risen to 13.7% in 2020, from 12.7% in 2019. 

Primary type of need 
 
Severe learning difficulty (SLD) remains the most common primary type 

of need for pupils with a statement or an EHC plan in state-funded 

                                                           
1
 This includes pupil referral units, academy and free school alternative provision. 

P
age 51



schools in Gloucestershire, however, the percentage of pupils recorded 

as having this need has continued to decrease from 22.8% in 2017 to 

19.9% in 2019.  Autistic spectrum disorder (ASD) continues to be the 

second most prominent need identified, 19% of pupils were recorded as 

having this need.  Nationally, ASD remains the most common primary 

type of need with 30% of pupils with an EHCP having this need. 

There are a greater number of boys in all categories of need, although a 

significantly higher proportion of boys are in the ASD need category 

(20.9% compared to 14.6% of girls).  The proportion of boys identified 

as having social, emotional and mental health (SEMH) needs is also 

higher (18.4% compared to 12.5% of girls).  A higher proportion of girls 

are identified as having SLD (21.8% compared to 19.1% of boys) and 

moderate learning difficulty (MLD - 12.2% compared to 11.6% of boys). 

Key headlines 

 16.8% of pupils in the county have special educational needs, an 

increase from 15.9% in January 2019. 

 3.3% of pupils in Gloucestershire have an Education, Health and 

Care (EHC) plan compared to 3.0% in January 2019. 

 A further 13.5% of pupils have SEN support, a rise from 12.8% in 

January 2019. 

 Special educational needs remain more prevalent in boys than girls, 

with boys representing 74% of pupils with an EHCP and 62.6% of 

pupils with SEN support.   

 In line with the national picture, the proportion of pupils with SEND 

is highest in the last few years of primary school, with the 

percentage of pupils who have SEN increasing up to 21.7% at age 

10 and decreasing through secondary years.   

 Severe learning difficulty (SLD) remains the most common primary 

type of need for pupils with a statement or an EHC plan in state-

funded schools in Gloucestershire. 

 The majority of pupils on SEN Support have moderate learning 

difficulty (MLD) as a primary type of need. 

 82.7% of Gloucestershire pupils with SEN attended state-funded 

primary and secondary schools in January 2020 (54.3% of pupils 

with an EHCP and 89.5% with SEN Support).   

 The percentage of pupils with SEN in independent schools has 

increased, whilst there has been a decrease in the number of pupils 

with SEN in pupil referral units.   

 In Gloucestershire’s state-funded schools, 6.3% of pupils with any 

other Black background recorded as their ethnicity have an EHC 

plan.  The highest incidence for SEN support in the county is among 

travellers of Irish heritage (32.9%).  

 As in previous years, pupils with SEN are more likely to be eligible 

for free school meals.  Pupils with EHC plans are three times more 

likely to be eligible for free school meals compared to pupils without 

SEN.  The percentage of pupils with SEN support who are eligible 

for free school meals is more than double that for pupils with no 

SEN. 

 Gloucestershire pupils with SEND are six times more likely to be 

permanently excluded than pupils with no identified SEN. 

 The fixed period exclusion rate is also higher for Gloucestershire 

pupils with SEN - 17.54 for pupils with an EHC plan and 18.86 for 

pupils with SEN support, compared to 3.72 for pupils with no 

identified SEN.  

 

Children and Young People aged 0 to 25 with an 

Education, Health and Care (EHC) plan 
(Source: SEN2 census, January 2021 

 

There were 4,342 children and young people aged 0 to 25 with an EHC 

plan maintained by the local authority in January 2021 compared to 

3,922 in January 2020.  This number has continued to increase to 4,570 

as at 1st July 2021.   

Nationally the percentage of children and young people with an EHC 

plan increased by 10.4% (40,588 EHCPs), from 390,109 in 2020 to 

P
age 52



430,697 in 2021.  The numbers of children and young people with an 

EHC plan maintained by Gloucestershire’s 10 statistical neighbour 

authorities also continued to increase from January 2020 to January 

2021. 

The table below shows the rate per 1,000 of 0 to 24 year olds with an 

EHCP in Gloucestershire as at January 2020 and January 2021 

compared to Gloucestershire’s statistical neighbour authorities and the 

national rate. 

 

Local Authority Rate (Jan-20) Rate (Jan-21) 

Bath and North East Somerset 21.2 24.2 

Cambridgeshire 24.0 27.1 

Devon 31.0 34.9 

Dorset 28.3 33.0 

Gloucestershire 22.3 24.6 

Hampshire 23.9 27.6 

Shropshire 24.0 24.9 

South Gloucestershire 23.5 26.7 

West Sussex 24.8 26.0 

Wiltshire 27.5 29.6 

Worcestershire 25.3 26.1 

National 23.3 25.7 

Statistical Neighbours (average) 25.3 28.0 

 

Source: Locally calculated indicator based on data submitted for the SEN2 

census and ONS mid-year population estimates for 2019 (0-24 year olds) 

Age Range 

 

In Gloucestershire, children aged 5 to 10 years old continued to account 

for the highest percentage of children and young people with an EHC 

plan (37%).  Prior to 2018 the majority of children with a statement or an 

EHC plan were aged 11 to 15; nationally children in this age range 

continue to account for the largest percentage with an EHC plan 

(35.2%) as at January 2021.  The majority of children with an EHC plan 

maintained by the statistical neighbour authorities were also aged 11 to 

15 (35%).    

P
age 53



Children under 5 years of age accounted for 3.7% and 3.8% of children 

and young people with a statement or an EHC plan in the county and 

nationally, respectively. 

 
Figure 1: Number of C&YP aged 0-25 with a statement or an EHCP  

by age range, 2010 to 2020 

 

From September 2014, EHC plans replaced Learning Difficulty 

Assessments (LDAs) for young people in post-16 education.  In line 

with the national position, the percentage of children and young people 

aged 16 to 19 years old with a statement or an EHC plan (excluding 

LDAs) has subsequently increased year on year from January 2014 

(5.8%) to January 2018 (20.3%) before stabilising in recent years.  In 

January 2021, 19.6% of young people with an EHCP were in this age 

range in the county.  A similar proportion of young people with an EHC 

plan were aged 16 to 19 in the statistical neighbour authorities (21.1%).  

The percentage of young people aged 20 to 25 has also increased 

since the introduction of EHC plans in 2014.  In the county, 3.1% of 

young people with an EHCP were in this age range.  Nationally 6.9% of 

young people with an EHCP were aged 20-25 and 6.7% for the 

statistical neighbour authorities. 

Establishment type 

 

The number of children with an EHC plan in mainstream education in 

Gloucestershire has continued to increase, whilst the proportion of 

overall EHC plans in these settings has decreased, from 46.3% in 2020 

to 45.3% in 2021.  Nationally and for Gloucestershire’s statistical 

neighbour authorities, the proportion of pupils in mainstream education 

has increased.   

In the county, among neighbouring authorities and nationally the 

proportion of pupils in Special Schools has continued to decrease 

despite increasing numbers of children in these settings.  Of those 

pupils in special settings in the county, 28.4% were receiving provision 

in state-funded special schools and academies, this is a decrease 

compared to the previous year (29.9%) and is slightly lower than 

nationally (30.7%) but higher than the proportion for neighbouring 

authorities (27.5%).  Fewer pupils with statements and EHC plans 

maintained by Gloucestershire were receiving provision in non-

maintained and independent special schools (4.5%) than nationally 

(5%) and the neighbouring authorities (5.5%).   

The proportion of young people in further education in Gloucestershire 

has increased from 11.9% in 2020 to 12.5% in 2021.  The majority of 

post 16 learners with a statement or an EHC plan were receiving 

provision in general FE colleges (10.9% in Gloucestershire compared to 

13.2% nationally and 14.1% for statistical neighbour authorities).  The 

percentage of young people receiving provision in Specialist post-16 

institutions in the county (1.6%) was the same as nationally (1.6%) and 

lower than the statistical neighbour authorities (1.9%). 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Under 5 Age 5 to 10 Age 11 to 15 Age 16 to 19 Age 20 to 25

P
age 54



 

 
Figure 2: Number of C&YP aged 0-25 with an EHCP in by Establishment Type, 

2018 to 2021 

Information from SEND dashboards 

As at 1st July 2021, 4,570 children and young people aged 0 to 25 had 

an EHC plan maintained by the local authority.  Children aged 5 to 10 

continue to account for the highest percentage of children and young 

people with an EHC plan (37.4%), followed by young people aged 11 to 

15 (36%).   

Moderate learning difficulty (MLD – 26.6%) continues to be the most 

prevalent need recorded in a child and young person’s EHC plan, 

followed by Social, Emotional and Mental Health needs (SEMH – 

22.1%) and Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD – 19.3%).2 

Primary Need: 
Current 

No. % 

ASD - Autistic Spectrum Disorder 884 19.3% 

HI - Hearing Impairment 49 1.1% 

MLD - Moderate Learning Difficulty 1216 26.6% 

MSI - Multi-Sensory Impairment 10 0.2% 

OTH - Other 0 0.0% 

PD - Physical Disability 269 5.9% 

PMLD- Profound & Multiple Learn Diff 78 1.7% 

SEMH - Social, Emotional and Mental Health 1010 22.1% 

SLCN - Speech Lang & Comm Needs 765 16.7% 

SLD - Severe Learning Difficulty 157 3.4% 

SPLD  - Specific Learning Diff 96 2.1% 

VI - Visual Impairment 36 0.8% 

 

Of the 4,570 children and young people with an EHC plan, 4.4% are 

children in care, 1.4% are subject of a Child Protection Plan and 5.1% 

are children in need. 

                                                           
2
 Based on the need recorded in the child / young person’s EHC plan.  This may differ to the need 

designated by a school in the January School Census. 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

2018 2019 2020 2021

Non-maintained early years
Mainstream school
Special school
Alternative provision/Pupil referral unit
Further education

P
age 55



The following table provides a breakdown of the number of children and 

young people with an EHCP by provision type. 

Provision Type: No. % 

EY settings 82 1.8% 

State-funded Primary 1,193 26.1% 

State-funded Secondary 734 16.1% 

State-funded Special 1,215 26.6% 

OLA State-funded Primary 23 0.5% 

OLA State-funded Secondary 37 0.8% 

OLA State-funded Special Schools 22 0.5% 

Alternative Provision School 27 0.6% 

OLA Alternative Provision Schools 5 0.1% 

NMS / Independent Schools / Social Care placement 322 7.0% 

General FE / Training Providers 437 9.6% 

Special Post 16 Institutions (SPIs) 71 1.6% 

Child missing education 2 0.0% 

Elective Home Education 60 1.3% 

No registered base - Awaiting provision 230 5.0% 

No registered base - Consider cease / cease letter issued 110 2.4% 

 

The following table provides further information about the registered 

bases recorded on Capita for the 238* pupils included under the ‘No 

registered base – Awaiting provision’ category: 

 

Registered base on Capita No. 

EHCP - Personal Budget 1 

EHCP = EY 1 

EHCP - Awaiting Placement 71 

EHCP - CIC OOC 3 

EHCP - EOTAS 9 

EHCP - Miscelleneous - C 1 

EHCP - Moved In waiting placement 16 

EHCP - Placement  Referral Sent 23 

EHCP - Placement not yet identified 77 

EHCP - Tutor Long Term 7 

EHCP - Tutoring 24 

EHCP Traineeship 1 

EHCP Waiting confirmation of placement 2 

Blank (no base recorded) 2 

 

*Please note the data for the awaiting provision table is as at 5
th

 July 2021, therefore, 

the figures in the above table are slightly higher than those included in the provision 

table. 

Assessment process 

During the 2019/20 academic year, 695 initial requests were made for 

assessment for an EHC plan.  This is an increase of 134 (23.9%) 

compared to the previous academic year when 561 requests were 

made.  This academic year to date (1st September 2020 to 31st June 

2021), 674 requests have been made; fewer requests were received 

during the same period in 2019/20 (606).  The majority of requests 

received are for pupils aged 5 to 10.   

P
age 56



 

The majority of requests continue to be received from schools (540 – 

77.7% in 2019/20).  However, there was a large increase in the number 

of requests made by parents during the 2019/20 academic year (137) 

compared to the previous academic year (96).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

New EHC plans issued 

During the academic year to date (1st September 2020 to 30th June 

2021), 503 new EHC plans have been issued for children and young 

people aged 0 to 25.  This is an increase compared to the same period 

during the previous academic year (421).  The majority of new EHCPs 

issued are for pupils aged 5 to 10.  SEMH is the most prevalent need 

identified in new EHCPs issued. 

New EHC plans issued within time limits 

During the 2019/20 academic year, 88.1% (443/503) of new plans were 

issued within the 20 week timescale excluding exceptions, and 85.2% 

(449/527) within timescale including exception cases.  This is a 

decrease compared to the previous academic year (99.8% (489/490) 

and 99.6% (490/492) respectively). 

This academic year to date (1st September 2020 to 30th June 2021), 

47.5% (188/396) of new plans have been issued within the 20 week 

timescale excluding exceptions, and 37.8% (190/503) within timescale 

including exception cases. 

The following charts show the percentage of new EHC plans issued 

within timescales on a monthly basis over the last four academic years 

(including the 2020/21 academic year to date).  These reflect the 

decrease in the percentage of new EHC plans issued within timescales 

due to COVID-19.  Of the new EHCPs issued during the 2019/20 

academic year, 15 had a COVID-19 related exception recorded rising to 

92 for those issued during the 2020/21 academic year. 

441 

593 
649 

561 

695 674 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Number of new requests for statutory assessment 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Percentage  of new requests for statutory assessment by 
source 

Health Authority Parent School Social Services Young Person

P
age 57



 

 

 

SEND Exclusions 

 

During the 2020/21 academic year to date, 29 pupils with SEND have 

been permanently excluded compared to 34 during the previous 

academic year (53% and 48% respectively).   

 

There have been 1,695 instances of fixed term exclusions for pupils 

with SEND during the 2020/21 academic year to date compared to 

2,105 during the previous academic year (49% and 48% respectively). 

 

SEND Appeals 

During the 2020/21 academic year to date, 20 appeals have been 

lodged; 25 appeals were lodged during the same period in 2019/20.  

The majority of appeals are lodged for children aged under 16 (19 

appeals - 95%).  Fewer appeals were lodged during the 2019/20 

academic year compared to the 2018/19 academic year. 

 

For more information on EHCP and SEN Support please see the linked 

dashboard here: 

 

Current SEND dashboard 

 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

%
 o

f 
n

e
w

 E
H

C
P

s 
is

su
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 w

e
e

ks
,  

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
s 

Month 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 (YTD)

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

%
 o

f 
n

e
w

 E
H

C
P

s 
is

su
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 w

e
e

ks
, 

 
e

xc
lu

d
in

g 
e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

s 

Month 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 (YTD)

0

10

20

30

40

50

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Number of Tribunals lodged  (Academic year) 

P
age 58

file://///svrshfp01/EDS_CountyWide$/ChildrenAndYoungPeoplesStrategy/EDUCATION-Managers/Data%20Dashboards/Current%20Month/SEND%20Data%20Dashboard.pdf


 

1 Capital Spend. 

 

The revised annual budget for the 2021/22 Schools capital programme is £41.591 million.  
The financial year spend as at the end of August 2021 was £12.509 million.  
 

The current approved capital programme is shown below. 

Education Capital  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

16th September 2021 

Type of Decision For information 

Background 
Documents 

 N/A 

Author Gareth Vine 

Purpose of Report To update the Forum 

Key 
Recommendations 

That the position be noted 

 

Resource 
Implications 

The Schools Capital Programme is funded from Government Grants, 
developer contributions, school contributions and internal borrowing from 
the Council’s reserves. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



Schools Capital Programme 2021/22

Project Description

Budget

Total

Spend

Previous

Years

Budget

2021

Spend to 

end of 

August

2021

Budget

Future 

Years

Advanced Design 2020/21 135,640 107,457 28,183 1,432 0

Advanced Design 2021/22 100,000 0 100,000 19,411 0

Alderman Knight expansion 1,900,000 1,245,565 219,353 207,855 435,082

Ashchurch Primary replace temps 1,015,546 510,058 415,546 404,832 89,942

Balcarras School hygiene suite 54,883 0 54,883 6,845 0

Barnwood Park School hygiene room 94,535 93,005 1,530 0 0

Basic Need Grant 2020/21 4,862,198 0 940,000 0 3,922,198

Basic Need Grant 2022/23 6,773,801 0 0 0 6,773,801

Belmont expansion 602,930 126,694 443,236 422,885 33,000

Bishops Cleeve New Primary School 11,000,000 356,682 3,225,318 84,144 7,418,000

Bishops Cleeve Primary additional places 225,284 0 225,284 0 0

Bourton-on-the-Water Primary expansion 1,003,500 936,010 33,990 140 33,500

Bourton-on-the-Water Primary, expansion 989,592 966,864 22,728 0 0

Brockworth Primary Academy 1FE Expansion 962,279 962,279 0 0 0

Cam Hopton Primary platform lift 55,000 0 55,000 0 0

Carbon Reduction in Education Properties 1,000,000 0 300,000 0 700,000

Caretakers Properties 20/21 8,007 6,605 1,402 1,431 0

Caretakers Properties 2021/22 10,000 0 10,000 0 0

Chipping Campden School Performing Arts 828,015 291,796 536,219 21,615 0

Chosen Hill School hygiene suite 77,164 0 77,164 7,814 0

Christ Church Primary s106 adaptations 152,668 152,668 0 0 0

Churchdown Village Junior kitchen refurb 183,282 0 0 0 183,282

Cirencester Kingshill s106 adaptations 137,960 74,531 63,429 8,791 0

Cirencester Primary replace classrooms 2,039,403 1,900,978 138,425 10,144 0

Cleeve School 1FE expansion 5,477,477 5,336,302 50,175 33,401 91,000

Cleeve School dining facilities 206,125 183,555 22,570 0 0

Coopers Edge Primary, FFE & ICT 288,035 285,603 2,432 2,432 0

Dursley Primary remodelling 274,000 176,386 97,615 0 0

Early Years 18/19 88,928 540 25,000 0 63,388

Eastington Primary outdoor teaching area 89,227 79,866 9,361 5,970 0

Fairford Primary 2 classrooms 3,438,349 3,289,879 10,000 211 138,470

Farmors School s106 adaptations 130,000 124,730 5,270 0 0

Finlay Primary 1FE expansion 1,368,746 1,265,110 103,636 1,384 0

Gardners Lane Primary 2 Class Extension 948,227 938,227 10,000 35 0

Gardners Lane Primary kitchen refurb 174,541 0 0 84,612 174,541

Gloucester & Forest APS new site 150,000 0 150,000 5,785 0

Gloucester Road Primary s106 adaptations 158,968 1,472 157,496 2,900 0

Gotherington Primary s106 expansion 196,259 0 196,259 8,500 0

Grangefield Primary, ICT/FFE 152,226 77,006 45,132 0 30,088

Great Oldbury Primary Academy ICT/FFE 350,000 0 150,000 0 200,000

Hartpury Primary hygiene room 106,530 99,413 7,117 0 0

Healthy Pupils Capital Fund 18/19 409,221 0 409,221 0 0

High Needs Provision Capital 21/22 1,988,465 0 350,000 0 1,638,465

Hunts Grove, ICT/FFE 406,000 162,830 55,000 0 188,170

Kempsford Primary dining centre 82,780 74,741 0 8,039 8,039

Leckhampton Primary expansion 4,297,907 2,933,277 864,630 514,085 500,000

Longford Primary, ICT/FFE 271,000 225,702 15,298 0 30,000

Mickleton Primary, kitchen upgrade 98,585 89,306 8,607 9,279 672

Mitton Manor Pre-School 8,243 7,187 0 0 1,056

Mitton Manor Primary outdoor learning 68,696 67,824 872 0 0

Naunton Park Primary kitchen refurb 85,000 0 0 2,249 85,000

New Secondary School, Cheltenham 30,000,000 6,410,609 15,589,391 5,263,089 8,000,000

New SEMH Special School 9,750,000 380,681 4,819,319 1,420,608 4,550,000  
 

Page 60



Project Description

Budget

Total

Spend

Previous

Years

Budget

2021

Spend to 

end of 

August

2021

Budget

Future 

Years

Park Infant hygiene room 121,962 120,591 1,371 0 0

Parton Manor Junior additional classbase 247,297 237,297 10,000 0 0

Pittville School access works 25,000 0 25,000 0 0

Pittville School expansion 264,232 254,797 9,435 0 0

Pittville School hygiene room 90,996 89,288 1,709 0 0

Rednock School sports hall 308,903 170,722 138,181 9,496 0

School Kitchen Upgrades 2021/22 245,739 0 0 6,305 245,739

Schools Condition Allocation 2020/21 884,789 0 500,000 0 384,789

Schools Condition Allocation 21/22 4,605,001 0 0 0 4,605,001

Schools Health & Safety 2021/22 134,454 0 134,454 61,272 0

SEND Support in mainstream schools 36,644 16,590 20,054 0 0

Shurdington Primary expansion 1,458,614 1,453,614 5,000 35 0

Springbank Primary hygiene room 62,793 57,874 4,919 158 0

St. David's Primary expansion 1,500,000 211,208 0 0 1,288,792

The Cotswold School expansion 5,800,000 2,064,415 3,535,585 2,065,254 200,000

The John Moore Primary expansion 2,252,809 2,233,299 19,510 0 0

Upton St. Leonards Primary hygiene room 108,944 103,629 5,315 0 0

Warden Hill Primary replacement 6,503,110 160,629 2,000,000 164,575 4,342,481

Winchcombe Abbey Primary expansion 1,500,000 112,687 5,000 0 1,382,313

Winchcombe School expansion 4,746,781 2,573,956 2,000,000 1,136,837 172,825

Woodmancote Primary hygiene room 76,923 70,313 6,610 0 0

Wyedean School hygiene room 112,713 110,249 2,464 0 0

General Schools Programme 126,362,924 39,982,593 38,470,697 12,003,850 47,909,635

Capital Maintenance Programme 5,254,373 1,891,777 3,120,422 505,081 0

Total Schools Capital Programme 131,617,297 41,874,370 41,591,119 12,508,931 47,909,635  
 

 

2. Support for children and young people with additional needs 

 

New SEMH Special School 

 

Construction of the new 75 place SEMH Special School for 11-16 year olds commenced in 

May this year.  The school, which will open in September 2022, while focusing on SEMH 

needs, will also support children with autism as well as speech, language and 

communication needs.  The school will be sited at Mill Lane, Brockworth and will be part of 

the Learn@ multi academy trust, a well established MAT responsible for special schools and 

alternative provisions.    By providing places locally to meet demand we can support some of 

our most vulnerable children close to where they live and reduce reliance on out of 

county/independent schools to have their needs met. 

 

Alternative Provision 

 

Gloucestershire’s Alternative Provision Transformation Project was launched in June 2020 

and is part of the Joint High Needs Transformation Programme. As part of this we are 

seeking to improve the arrangements that are in place for the children and young people in 

Gloucestershire who have been, or are at risk of being, excluded from school. 

 

Page 61



Options for capital projects to improve arrangements are being developed.  We have just 

completed a scheme to relocate the primary provision of the Gloucester and Forest 

Alternative Provision (GFAPS) from the former Joys Green Primary School site in the Forest 

of Dean to Quedgeley in Gloucester.  The modern, fit for purpose learning environment will 

help staff to better support pupils, providing closer to home provision for a significant number 

of children.  Anticipated savings on transport costs will be in the region of £123,500 per year 

as result of reduced journey times and fewer children being over the statutory distance for 

transport assistance. 

 

Further information and details of these and other high needs plans can be found at: 

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-

projects/specialist-and-alternative-provision/ 

 

3. New Primary School for Bishop’s Cleeve 

 

To meet the additional demand for primary places arising from existing housing and new 

development there continues to be pressure within the school system to ensure there are 

sufficient school places in the Bishop’s Cleeve area.  A new primary school which will be part 

of the Gloucestershire Learning Alliance (GLA) MAT will be built on land to the north of the 

village next to the Old Farmers Arms on Evesham Road. The school will initially open to 60 

Reception children (two forms of entry) in 2023/24, and will gradually be expanded in line 

with housing growth to three forms of entry from 2030, eventually teaching 630 local 

children. 

 

Design options for the delivery of the new school are being developed and will be consulted 

upon at public consultation events in September with a planning application submitted later 

in the year. 

 

Further information can be found at: 

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-

projects/tewkesbury-school-places/school-places-in-bishops-cleeve/ 

 

4. New Cheltenham Secondary School 

 

Development of the new 900 place High School, Leckhampton is progressing at pace with 

the new provision scheduled to open September 2022.   The new school, which is run by the 

Balcarras Academy Trust, opened as planned in September 2021 for pupils in Year 7 only in 

accommodation provided at the Balcarras site.    Further information can be found at 

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-

projects/cheltenham-school-places/school-places-in-cheltenham/   

 

5. Impact of Covid-19 and Brexit 

 

The impact of the pandemic coupled with Brexit has started to show on supply chains of 

some key materials across the country.  While at the moment we are not experiencing any 

significant impact, it is reasonable to assume that this may subsequently have an impact on 

some schemes in terms of programme and cost.  We are working with schools and 

contractors to review the situation and assess the need for mitigation measures to ensure 

Page 62

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/specialist-and-alternative-provision/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/specialist-and-alternative-provision/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/tewkesbury-school-places/school-places-in-bishops-cleeve/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/tewkesbury-school-places/school-places-in-bishops-cleeve/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/cheltenham-school-places/school-places-in-cheltenham/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/education-and-learning/school-planning-and-projects/cheltenham-school-places/school-places-in-cheltenham/


continuity of school provision.  This will continue to be monitored on a monthly basis and 

mitigating plans developed where necessary. 

 

6. New Free School Bids 

 

In February the DfE announced the successful Wave 14 bids for new free schools 
centrally funded through the Governments Free School programme.  The 
announcement included approval for a new secondary school and also new primary 
school to serve Gloucester city as follows: 

 

 Beacon Secondary Academy, Gloucestershire - Cotswold Beacon Academy 
Trust  

 

 The Wheatridge Primary School, Gloucestershire - The Crypt School Trust 
 

In light of the impact of the pandemic and Brexit, both of these projects will be 

delayed by at least 2 years. The new schools will be delivered through the ESFA led 

free schools team and will provide additional places for Gloucester in line with the 

need for the additional provision and to ensure they do not adversely affect existing 

settings. 

 

7. Priority Schools Rebuilding Programme 

 

The DfE has also announced that two secondary academies in Gloucestershire, 

Katharine Lady Berkeley School, in Wotton Under Edge and Thomas Keble School in 

Stroud were also approved as part of phase 1 of the Governments School’s 

Rebuilding Programme.  The 10-year centrally funded and managed School 

Rebuilding Programme launched with a commitment to 500 rebuilding projects over 

the next decade.  Further work will be progressed with each school to determine the 

scope and extent of the projects at each location, together with a programme for their 

delivery. 

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Action sheet 17 June 2021

	5 School Funding 2022/23
	6 High Needs
	SEND Data Report

	7 Capital

